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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRASHREEEEEN WIS

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue in the amount of
approximately HK$353,588,000 (2020: HK$173,480,000). The
Group’s revenue was principally derived from the exploration,
production and distribution of natural gas segment of approximately
HK$353,588,000 (2020: HK$173,480,000). During the year, the
money lending business segment did not contribute any revenue to
the Group (2020: Nil), and the sales of food and beverages segment
did not contribute any revenue to the Group (2020: Nil) either.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to the owners of the
Company in the amount of approximately HK$123,775,000,
compared to a loss of approximately HK$14,173,000 during last
year. The turnaround to profit was mainly due to increase in revenue
by approximately HK$180.1 million or 103.8% as compared to last
year and reversal of impairment of approximately HK$98.5 million,
but partially offset by the increase in depreciation of property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$17.3 million, the increase in
depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$6.7 million,
the increase in amortisation of intangible assets of approximately
HK$6.6 million, the increase in finance costs of approximately
HK$21.1 million and the increase of income tax charge of
approximately HK$81.4 million. Basic and diluted loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of 0.15 HK cents turned around
to basic and diluted earnings per share of 1.30 HK cents and 0.98 HK
cents, respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Business Review

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas Segment

The Petroleum Contract

The Company'’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) entered into a
petroleum contract (the “Petroleum Contract”) with China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") for the drilling, exploration,
development and production of oil and/or natural gas within the
specified site located in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC
("Kashi Project”). The Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30 years
commencing 1 June 2009.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEAEEENRR DT

Under the Petroleum Contract, China Era shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the site. In the event that
any oil field and/or gas field is discovered within the site, the
development and production costs shall be borne by CNPC and
China Era in the proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The managements have devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies. On 6 December 2017,
China Era and CNPC entered into a supplemental and amendment
agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) extending the First Phase exploration period to 5
December 2017 and agreeing on the aggregation of the costs
incurred by CNPC between 1 June 2009 and 5 December 2017 with
the pre-contract costs. The costs incurred between 1 June 2009 and
31 December 2015 was in the amount of RMB651,653,000 (mainly
including three completed wells, reconstruction of natural gas
processing plant and the operating costs incurred during the period).
In 2018, the cost incurred by CNPC between 1 January 2016 and 31
December 2017 in the amount of approximately RMB94,042,000
was confirmed. On 20 June 2019, China Era and CNPC entered into
a second supplemental agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the
“2nd Supplemental Agreement”), which agreed the amount of
profit sharing between 2009 and 2017.

The filing of the Overall Development Program (“ODP") was
completed on 8 July 2019, and the development period of the Kashi
Project commenced with effect from 9 July 2019. Following the
operation of the new gas processing facilities on 1 July 2020, the
Joint Management Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperations
Project resolved that the commercial production stage commenced
with effect from 1 October 2020.

The Status of Gas Sales Agreements

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2020,
the Gas Sales Agreements ("GSA") was signed on 27 April 2020.
The terms of the GSA include the quantity of volume commitments,
gas quality, price terms, delivery obligations and delivery point, etc.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRASHREEEEEN WIS

Segment Performance

During the year, this operation of Kashi Project together with the
natural gas distribution operation in Karamay, Xinjiang, contributes
revenue of approximately HK$353,588,000 (2020: HK$173,480,000)
and the segment profit before income tax was approximately
HK$222,969,000 (2020's the segment loss before income tax:
approximately HK$4,700,000).

The results of operations in exploration, production and distribution
of natural gas segment and costs incurred for exploration and
evaluation assets acquisition and exploration activities are shown as
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below:

(@)  Results of operations in exploration, production, and (a)

distribution of natural gas segment

Revenue

Direct cost

Other income

Reversal of impairment of property, plant
and equipment

Reversal of impairment of intangible
assets

Selling and distribution expenses

Operating expenses

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Finance cost

Results of operations before income tax

(b)  Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets acquisitions — (b)

and exploration activities

Exploration cost
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHHSRAEEENRR DT

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Group did not record any revenue from the sales of food and
beverages business segment in 2021 and 2020. The segment loss
before tax was approximately HK$ 1,142,000 (2020: HK$1,187,000).
No revenue was recorded during the year, mainly due to the Group'’s
intention to reduce reliance on sales of food and beverage. We will
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resource as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The Group did not generate any revenue in 2021 and 2020 from the
money lending business operated by its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Zhong Neng Finance Ltd. The segment loss before tax was
approximately HK$143,000 (2020: HK$145,000). The Group
continued to adopt a stringent credit policy to mitigate the credit risk
arising from the money lending business.

Financial Review
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has outstanding secured other
borrowings of approximately HK$453,750,000 (2020:
HK$389,400,000). The cash and cash equivalents of the Group were
approximately HK$167,280,000 (2020: HK$167,985,000). The
Group's current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) was
approximately 40.5% (2020: 50.4%). The ratio of total liabilities to
total assets of the Group was approximately 37.6% (2020: 41.6%).

As at 31 December 2021, the convertible notes due in 2041 has an
outstanding principal amount of HK$679,670,000. These convertible
notes do not carry any interest, but carry the right to convert the
principal amount into ordinary shares of the Company. The
conversion price is HK$0.168 per share (subject to adjustments) and
a maximum number of 4,045,654,761 shares may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
convertible notes in full. During the year, no convertible note was
converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

HERMRERER

R-EZ—FER-_T-_TF AEBIEEH

ERM MBI ER D BRI - ﬁ%mu
D EBET 1B 49 /1,142,000 T (= & i
1,187,000/ 70 ) ° A G E NI 815 H&z
;“éﬁ%ﬁ$%lﬁmd\ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%&@ﬂmm
T REEBEEHRZCERE  TRNER
B AR ERDE -

BEEH

R-ZZBEZ—FR-_Z_ZTF AEEFEBERM
BE2EMBEA 743@%97%%&& BT B IR
EEHIEELETWRE - BB DIHEER
#9143,00078 L (= =Z4F : 145,000/87C) °
REBUEE %ﬂm%ﬂﬂ:iﬁﬂz%foﬁziﬁifé%r%
ELENEER

5t %55 [0 R
RBES  UBERREARERE

RW-_E-—F+-A=+—8" 7&%!5&%‘*
BEMEMEEL A 453,750,000/8C (==
T4 :389,400,000/87C) - AEE RS LE
[E38 4 4 5167,280,000/8 T ( — T - T F ¢
167,985,000/87T) - NEE 2 R EB R ORE)
BELRSEE) Y A% (ZE_ZTF:

50.4%) - AREBRBERBEEZLROH
37.6% (ZZE T : 41.6%) °
RZFZ—F+ZA=+t—H —TO—F3

Bz AR =g 2 K ;;&ﬁﬂ% 679,670,000
BT o AR ER AT E - B AR T
BARCHEHERARAGLBER HKBEAFR
0.168 8L (] T %) + ifn i AT 42 A% AR A5
ZHBBEERRTE IRBERETRS
4,045,654,761 BRI o F AL & AT IR AR R AR E
HAARRNR LR -

Annual Report 4 2021 07



CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHHERAEEENRR D

Charge of Assets

Account receivables in the Nil amount were pledged as security for
other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$78,334,000).
In addition, the rights of natural gas sharing amount and sales
revenue under the product sharing agreement and the sales
agreement were pledged as security for other borrowings as at 31
December 2021 (2020: same pledge as at 31 December 2021).

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK dollar
and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimise currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative
contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks during the year.
However, management will monitor foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if
necessary.

Capital Commitments

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$114,575,000 (of which approximately HK$517,233 would be
borne by CNPC) (2020: HK$115,501,000 of which approximately
HK$36,151,000 would be borne by CNPC) and HK$133,100,000
(2020: HK$129,800,000) as at 31 December 2021 in respect of
capital expenditure of exploration, production and distribution of
natural gas segment and capital contributions in a subsidiary
respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of 43
(2020: 46). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional qualifications
and the prevailing market practice.

BEEMA
ROB-—4+-A=+—8 UWMEKER

EEBAEMERZIER(ZZEZZF:
78,334,000 7T) © N RZEZ—F+=H
—+t—H KBEERIKBEREER ES
RIET KA R D A& 58 M 8 6 I e R R FI 3K 1R 1
HEMER s ER(ZEZSF BT = —
+=A=+—REKHER) -

5B JEL B

AEENEIZLEMRASTEMNTE  EEYH
O R B = 2R BB T R A RBE Ray K
B EXRBRETSHA AR ANEEH
F o AREHN -ERREREEERIALIAH
WREBKEER REREKEYEAR - £
A ERAZHRBRKER  AREFALES
PRAKEE R R MmAI ZERITETEAL - A
m-BEEESTNEBINERR  BERE
B ERINE R -

BAESE

R-E-—F+-"A=1+—BEAEERXRAR
BFE - AEMDHES BN ERRAST R —M
MB AR EED BB EAREIEL 114,575,000
B (A 49517,233 8 TP BIA B EERE)
(== = Z % :115,501,000/8 7T & & 4
36,151,000 T A B A S B &IE) &
133,100,000 7 ( — & — Z 4 : 129,800,000
) °

HREME

N_E-—FR-_FE-_FF+_A=+—0H "
AEBWEEMERNKIAEE -

EBEEH

W_ZE-—F+-_A=+—8 KAEEH£EF43
FZ(ZEZTF 46H)ET - AEBREEZH
BHERE S > TIERIR - TIERKEER EEER K
WIS B

08 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7



CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEAEEENRR DT

Emphasis of matter on going conern
Going Concern Basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$353,513,000. This condition indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the
Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business. Our auditor’s opinion includes an
emphasis of matter on going concern, without qualification.

The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2021 are mainly
attributable to property, plant and equipment/exploration and
evaluation cost payables in the amount of approximately
HK$399,660,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$474,364,000). The directors of the Company are of the view that
the Group will be able to successfully persuade these contractors not
to insist on demanding repayment. However, there is no certainty
that these contractors will not demand repayment.

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including (i)
financial support from a shareholder not to demand repayment
within 12 months; (i) the Group being able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on demanding repayment of the construction
cost payables; and (iii) the Group being able to raise adequate
funding through bank borrowings or otherwise. Taking into account
the above assumptions, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve months from
31 December 2021. The Directors will continue to negotiate with
banks and other financiers, financial institutions and potentially
interested investors with the view to obtaining new funding whether
by way of equity or debt financing to improve the Company’'s
financial position and/or liquidity, with the objective of removing the
emphasis of matter on going concern.

The Audit Committee’s view

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the key
audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management’s judgments regarding
the going concern basis of the financial statements.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHHERAEEENRR D

Prospects

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas

The project details and key milestones for the Kashi Project were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2010. In
essence, the Petroleum Contract covers an exploration period of up
to six years (which was already extended by CNPC pursuant to the
Supplemental Contract), a development period and a production
period. The development period commences on the date after the
date of filing completion of the ODP and ends on the date of the
completion of the development operations required by the ODP to
be completed during the development period. The end of the
development period also signifies the commencement of the
commercial production of the project and hence the production
period, which runs for fifteen years for an oil field and twenty years
for a gas field (subject to extension with the approval of the
government).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 July 2019,
the filing of the ODP of Kashi Project was completed on 8 July 2019
and the development period commenced with effect from 9 July
2019. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April
2020, the GSA was signed on 27 April 2020. Following the operation
of the new gas processing facilities on 1 July 2020, the Joint
Management Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperations Project
resolved that the commercial production stage commenced with
effect from 1 October 2020.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 September
2021, in the second half of 2021, further new production wells
commenced operation or construction at the Akemomu Gas Field,
including: (1) the commencement of operation of a new well, WD-1,
which was originally designed as an exploratory well and was turned
into a production well due to its production of commercial gas flow;
(2) the completion of drilling of a new production well, AK1-H8,
which is a horizontal well, currently in the process of well completion,
and is expected to be put into operation in or before the first quarter
of 2022; and (3) the commencement of drilling of a new production
well, AK4-1, which is a vertical well, and is expected to proceed to
well completion stage and put into operation in or before the first
quarter of 2022.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRASHEEEEEN RS

The Company’s management will continue to follow up with
potential lenders and investors with the view to secure additional
debt and/or equity funding to finance the further development of the
project. Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company as
and when there is any significant progress of the Kashi Project.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will assess
the value and performance of this segment from time to time, and
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resources as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The management will continue to look for high quality borrowers in
order to minimise the risk of default. The management has taken a
cautious approach in money lending business in view of the Group’s
current financial position.

Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our existing strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholders. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders
for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZRE

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 64, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and was elected as the chief executive
officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for
Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has nearly 35 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of petroleum industry. He
acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company (the
“Shengli Oilfield”) and was awarded the Top-notch talent from
China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as an alternative director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong on 29 June
2015.

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Gu Quan Rong, aged 57, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in September 2014. He obtained a bachelor degree
and a post-doctoral degree in Organic Chemistry from Nanjing
University in 1987 and 1996, respectively, and a doctorate degree in
mineral processing from China University of Mining & Technology,
Beijing in 1993. He is an expert in chemistry, energy, biodiesel and oil
and gas. Between 1996 and now, he held the positions of Associate
Professor, Professor and Vice Dean for Scientific Research in Nanjing
University, and had been a Visiting Scholar in Wayne State University,
United States and University of Regina, Canada and a Senior Research
Fellow in University of Alberta, Canada. He had worked with leading
oilfields in China such as Daging Oilfield, Shengli Qilfield and Dagang
Qilfield, and been the Chief Scientist of energy companies in North
America.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zong Ketao, aged 55, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2015. He is a lawyer qualified to
practice law in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He holds
a master degree in law from University of International Business and
Economics, China and a bachelor degree in law from Lanzhou
University, China. He has extensive experience in litigation and
arbitration, company law and laws relating to investment, finance,
energy, mining and capital market. From 1989 to 2000, he joined
Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company Limited, an associate of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”), as a member of
their in-house legal department. From 2003 to 2004, he was
appointed as the senior legal supervisor of another group company
of Sinopec. Since 2005, he started his own private legal practice and
joined various law firms in the PRC as a partner.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying, aged 53, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in January 2016. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Certified Practicing
Accountants Australia. He holds a master’s degree in business law
from Monash University, Australia and a bachelor’s degree in
commerce accounting from The Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He has extensive experience in finance and accounting, and
has worked as financial controller in various private and public listed
companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and the United States.

Mr. Lee Man Tai, aged 45, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in January 2016. He graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration in financial services from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He has approximately 20 years of professional experience
in accounting and auditing. He worked in audit firms between 2000
and 2006, and has occupied the positions of chief financial officer,
financial controller and company secretary of several listed companies
in Hong Kong between 2006 and 2016. He is an independent non-
executive director of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1581), Rizhao Port Jurong Co., Ltd. (stock code: 6117) and
Yunhong Guixin Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8349), which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a responsible officer for
type 1 and 6 regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Corporate Governance Report
TLEERHRE

Overview =

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance AR BB NHEIZRF 2 EEAKFERIEF -
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of ZEHEeMARTFLEESATHZEEHRK
and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe % - B ISR CEE A TEBHALATAE
that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the — ZWESE 5 | H 75 &E(E - Jra] Ik o| B R
Company in effective supervision and control on its business &&¥% » ABREMHET AEBE -

operation, but also attracts investment from international institutional
investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder value.

1. Corporate Governance Practices 1.

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the "CG
Code"). During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has complied with the CG Code except for the following:

(@ In relation to Code Provision A.2.1 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as C.2.1) of the CG Code,
the roles of chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the
“CEO") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual and the division of responsibilities
between the chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing. During the year, Mr.
Zhao Guogiang is the CEO of the Company. During the
year, the position of chairman is vacated and the Board
intends to identify satisfiable candidate to fill the vacancy.

(b) In relation to Code Provision E.1.2 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as C.2.2) of the CG Code,
the chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions raised up in the
meeting. During the year, the position of chairman is
vacated, but other Directors and members of the audit
committee were present at the meeting to answer
questions from Shareholders.

(© In relation to Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2
(subsequently rearranged and renumbered as B.2.2) of
the CG Code, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election while
all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. For the year under review,
all independent non-executive directors of the Company
have not been appointed for a specific term but they are

14 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7
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Corporate Governance Report

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's articles of association. The management
experience, expertise and commitment of the re-electing
Directors will be considered by the nomination committee
of the Company before their re-election proposals are
put forward to Shareholders. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices regarding Directors’ appointment are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

In relation to Code Provision A.1.1 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as C.5.1) of the CG Code,
the board should meet regularly and board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. In relation to Code Provision C.1.2
(subsequently rearranged and renumbered as D.1.2) of
the CG Code, management should provide all members
of the board with monthly updates on the issuer’s
performance, position and prospects, which may include
budgets, forecasts, monthly management accounts and
material variance between the projections and actual
results. During the year, although regular Board meetings
were held only on half-yearly basis and management
accounts were not circulated to Board members on
monthly basis, regular verbal updates were given by the
management to the Directors on working level meetings
from time to time, which the Directors consider to be
sufficient and appropriate in the circumstances to enable
them to form a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company’s performance and to discharge their
duties.

With respect to Code Provision C.2.5 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as D.2.5) of the CG Code,
an issuer should have an internal audit function and
issuers without an internal audit function should review
the need for one on an annual basis and should disclose
the reasons for the absence of such a function in the
Corporate Governance Report. Due to the nature, size
and scale of operations and as a matter of cost-control
measures, the Group did not have internal audit function
during the Year. However, the Company will carry out
review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
to assess the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems for
the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders and
assets of the Company at all times. Such systems aim to help
achieving the Group'’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for provision of
reliable financial information. However, the design of the
systems is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statements or
loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information systems
security. The chief financial officer (the “CFO") has reported to
the audit committee from time to time during the year, in
conjunction with key findings identified by the external
auditors, findings and actions or measures taken in addressing
those internal controls. The audit committee in turn reports any
material issues to the Board. The Board, through the audit
committee, also sets targets for and reviews plan and progress
on continuous improvement work of the Company’s internal
control system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

Board of directors

(@  Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
a total of five members including one executive director,
one non-executive director and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have different
professional and relevant industry experiences and
background so as to bring in valuable contribution and
advice for the development of the Group’s business. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has three
independent non-executive directors representing not
less than one-third of the Board, and two of them are
qualified accountants.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each incumbent independent non-executive director
of their independence to the Group. The Group
considered that all independent non-executive directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. The names of the directors
and their respective biographies are set out on pages 12
to 13 of this annual report.

The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group's strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during
the financial year and their individual attendance of
meeting are set out below:
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Attendance/number of meetings entitle to attend

Name Board
HH EEg
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (CEQ)  ##EIS& 504 (775482 4/4
Dr. Gu Quan Rong BErgEr 4/4
Mr. Zong Ketao TREERAE 4/4
Mr. Cheng Chun Ying BIRE R4 4/4
Mr. Lee Man Tai £ e 4/4

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group's strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.

Audit Remuneration
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BHZEE

NATER
33
23
33
313

G/ VL b A -1 T

Annual/
Extraordinary
Nomination General
Committee ~ Committee Meeting
BRREF/
FHEEE REZEE -3 VN- 1
NATER NATER 01
1”1 171 on

n n 0/1

n n n

7 17 "

EFEeRE RV EIE - X5

(d)

REHEMER EEBR - 5B
MIFHTTEREREBELTRAUNES
B MESIMARRELEE B
PERERR LK © B - ARBRBAAE
EEHEEY -

EXeEEARBZRBERR
WREAREZ BIF - REERECR -

17

Annual Report F#f 2021



Corporate Governance Report
TLEERHRE

(f)  The major issues which were brought before the Board
for their decisions during the year include: (i) proposals
related to potential acquisition, investments, or any
significant capital expenditures; and (ii) formulation of
operational strategies and review of its financial
performance and results and the internal control system.

(9)  The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the

Company’s assets.

(h) The Company has set up three Board committees,
namely, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, to oversee
particular aspect of the Group’s affairs, details of which

are set out in the relevant sections below.

(i)  The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group’s businesses to management
of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of financial statements for Board
approval before publishing, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

() When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into

any commitments on behalf of the Company.

(k) In relation to the CG Code, all directors have participated
their own professional training by attending seminar/
programme/reading relevant materials in relation to the

business on directors’ duties.
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Corporate Governance Report

() The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

(m) The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own Code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors of the Company. All incumbent Directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code through the year.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. On 31 March 2016, the
Company revised the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
educational background or professional experience. All Board
appointments are based on merits and considered against a
variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(@)  As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman of the
Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was elected as the
CEO on 29 December 2009.

(b) The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.

EERERHRE

() ARE+LERSREFEENA
REE  WEARRAEERSR
EEABRBAENARTRRE - R
BRREHE SR FETRE

(m) ARBEHRALTARRIME0FE
EHETAESTETEFR D ZIE
FTA((RETFAD  (FREAXY
HRARREFETESR S Z1T
RTR - BARBEHEEER

& 2RATESCHRIARERNT
N—EBTRESTAITE 2 RTER
£ o

EEENEZTIEBER

s

R_E—=F\AZ++tH  ARFRIRE
CEERTAMEZRTE  KAEFEN
BEZTtBRER(ESEHES IR
K - RZB-—RF=ZA=+—H &2
AHEEENE S TTCBERIELER - &
RAREFERESTTIE/FTESLRT
AFEERNOBRIE - NRFTEEEA
I ARARREZTEHEEEFENES
Toit - BRRETRNREE - AE - 1A -
Fie  XERBEESHEXELR -EF
EMAEREUNRAES RRA > XEEE
ANEREXDEREFEKREZITTIEH
BRI E T B2 [ER BRI -

ERERTHREAR

(@) HBEAFHAN ZFEFSTFBU
Bz BEREER _TTNF
TZAZ TN BREE TR -

b) TTHEHRAEEEES ERES
SRBRIFEEERTRIAREE
BRE -ERREBEZXHET 1T
BB TAERRESNEESE
W TERAIEEN YREFES
CHRIEECEHRGEERR

Annual Report 4 2021 19



Corporate Governance Report
TLEERHRE

20

The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company's day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board'’s approval.

Non-executive Directors 6.

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors 7.

(a)

The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

i. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

i.  to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration;
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ii. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

iv.  to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company;

v.  toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying who acts as the chairman of the remuneration
committee, Dr. Gu Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr.
Lee Man Tai. The majority of members of the
remuneration committee is comprised of independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings was set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report. The remuneration committee had reviewed and
approved the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis
of their merit, qualification and competence.
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(e)  The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

(f)  The Group's share option scheme as described in the
“Report of the directors” was approved at the general
meeting of the Company on 25 June 2013 and adopted
as the Group's long-term incentive scheme.

8. Nomination of Directors 8.

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’s website.
The primary functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

i. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
the members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

ii. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

iv. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the CEO, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience in the future; and
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Corporate Governance Report

v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually.

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of
directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection
and proposed appointment of the Directors are submitted to
the nomination committee of the Company for consideration
prior to Board approval, and the re-election of Directors is
conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria of
assessing a candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to participate in the affairs of the Company
including the attendance of Board meetings and serving on
committees, to bring business experience to the Board and to
contribute to the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director, his/
her independence shall be assessed in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall be
evaluated in assessing his/her suitability.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
nomination committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying who
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, Dr. Gu
Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority
of members of the nomination committee is comprised of
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The
nomination committee had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, made recommendations on the
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive directors.
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Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the
auditor of the Company, received HK$950,000 in respect of
audit service provided to the Group. The auditors’
remuneration has been duly approved by the audit committee
and there was no disagreement between the Board and the
audit committee on the selection and appointment of auditor.

Audit Committee

(a)

The audit committee of the Company was established on
30 January 2002. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee were revised on 27 March 2012 and 31
March 2016 as disclosed on the Company’s website. As
at the date of this annual report, the audit committee
comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lee
Man Tai (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Gu Quan
Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying. Mr.
Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying are certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of the
Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge
their duties.

The number of audit committee meetings held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including
but not limited to the followings:

i. to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor;
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to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

c.  significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;
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d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e.  compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h. whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group’s financial
conditions;

any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

. the cash flow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board;

vii. in regard to vi. above:

a. members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

b. the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the
Company'’s accountant, compliance officer or
auditors.
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Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.
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to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the risk
managements and internal control systems and
ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal
control systems and to review the Company’s
statements on risk management and internal
control systems (which are included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations on
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;
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xv. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management'’s response;

Xvi. to review the external auditor’'s management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

xvii. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor's management letter;

xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in (and as
amended from time to time) Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules; and

Xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.

In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company’s financial statement, the audit committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined by
the Board from time to time; and to conduct interviews
with any director, manager, financial controller upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure.

The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard investments of the
shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The Group’s financial statements for the six months

ended 30 June 2021 and the year ended 31 December
2021 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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12.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chun Kau (“Mr. Chan”) has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since June 2014. Mr. Chan is a
solicitor in Hong Kong. He reports to the Board on Board
procedures and assists the Board in the compliance of law,
rules and regulations. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

Shareholder Rights

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company's articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings, if requested by shareholders.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll,
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions set out in the notice of the forthcoming AGM of
the Company will be voted by poll, and the poll results will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on or before the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, is available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors. During the year, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents.
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ERERME

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of the requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit of the
requisition the Directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM,
the Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

The Articles of the Company provides that no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for
election and also a notice by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
registered office or principal place of business in Hong Kong at
least seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.
Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director at the AGM, the following
documents must be validly served at the Company within the
period specified in the Articles, namely:

(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect
a nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM;
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14.

15.

Corporate

(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be elected,;

(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Investor Relations

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Dividend Policy

The Company adopts a dividend policy, taking into
consideration all circumstances including the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends: (i) the current
and projected financial performance of the Company; (i) the
growth and investment opportunities; (iii) other macro and
micro economic factors; and (iv) other factors or events that
the Board may consider relevant or appropriate from time to
time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and the Articles.

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

13.

14.

15.
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Corporate Governance Report
TLEERHRE

The appropriateness of the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, which in particular include: (i) financial
support from a shareholder not to demand repayment within
12 months; (i) the Group being able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on demanding repayment of the
construction cost payables; and (iii) the Group being able to
raise adequate funding through bank borrowings or otherwise.
However, the Company has not obtained any written
confirmation that the contractors will not insist on demanding
repayment of the construction cost payables. These conditions
indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubts about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
aware of any other events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
taking into consideration the various factors set out in the
section headed “Going concern basis” on page 9 of this
annual report.
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Zhao Guogiang it B o

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director TR FHTESR

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022 BB —TE-_—_F=A-+=H
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The directors present herewith the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries include the
exploration, production and distribution of natural gas in the PRC,
and the sales of food and beverages and money lending business in
Hong Kong, the details of which are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year 2021, and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business, can be found in the section headed “CEO’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. The above section forms part of this report of the
Directors.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income on pages 51
to 52.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2021 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 53 to 54.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated

assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 144.

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

EZRUREAFERERBE_T_—F
T-A=1t B LFEAKE 2 KELZW R
%0

FTEXBRREROE

ARRIZEBEBHRREZR  MARREE
WEQTZI%%%@%%$E@%\$E&
DHRARRENBRBHERBEAB RIEEZE
% - B BHENGE MEHRMEG

NENEGI (BB EDIE622F) ([ RES ) K
RSMEBMRZFRD2E—FTIREDM -
B ¥R 575 (o] JER e 7K 5= (8] T e O 3 2 L f A A B
ERAEM® BT FHRFEERE
EREAUAKEEZENEREMHFE - M
SEEBOAIBERKERNRT - AJ2HAF
WMTRERBREEEEBNRR DN —& -
B —fAREAEESREN—ED

BEHRRERE
AEBRFRAZEBEHNESIES2HZEE
B kEMEEmREE -
HE2-_Z-—4F+-_A=+—H AEEZH
AR D BB 53554 B 2 47 A BTSN ER -

EEVTMEREEEE_ST-_—F+=-HA
=t+—HIEFEZREERE -

AFEPHERE

AEEBEREAVRFERFIEEUBER
URGFEBERABRE  JIFNE 1445 -

Annual Report 4 2021 33



Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 55 and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2021 are set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFBE
The largest supplier BARER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ER BT

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer and
alternate director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Gu Quan Rong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zong Ketao

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying

Mr. Lee Man Tai
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Directors
retiring at the upcoming AGM will be eligible for re-election. Further
details of the Directors’ re-election will be set out in a circular of the
Company dispatched together with the notice of the AGM.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 12 to 13 of this annual report.

During the period under review and up to the date hereof, the
following changes in Directors’ information are disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules:

On 30 June 2021, Mr. Lee Man Tai was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Yunhong Guixin Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8349), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2021, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme which was adopted on 28 January 2002
(i.e. before the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange in February
2002) (the "Old Share Option Scheme”) has already expired on 28
January 2012. After its expiry, no further share option can be granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme. As at the beginning and the
end of the reporting period up to the date of this report, no option
remained outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme. No
option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed the Old Share
Option Scheme during both the reporting period and the
comparative period.
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Following the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for the purposes of recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that directors, employees,
consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisers or
contractors of the Group or an affiliate corporation, or trustee of
trust related to or controlled corporation of any of the foregoing (the
“Eligible Participants”) had made or may make to the Group, and
providing the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives, namely: (i) motivating the Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and (ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
ongoing business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the
Group. A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme can be founded on pages 7 to 17 of the Company’s circular
dated 27 May 2013.

The New Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running
from 25 June 2013 to 25 June 2023. Under the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options
to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for shares of the Company
("Shares”). Initially, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) was
792,112,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the New Share Option Scheme on 25 June 2013. The
maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue, provided that the
maximum entitlement for any grantee being a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or their associates shall be
capped at 0.1% of the shares in issue (or HK$5 million in value based
on the closing price of the shares underlying the options, whichever
is higher). Any grant exceeding these individual limits shall be subject
to shareholders’ approval, with the relevant grantees and their
associates abstaining from voting. The overall limit on the number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole discretion,
there is no general requirement of a minimum period for which an
Option must be held or any performance target which must be
satisfied or achieved before such an Option can be exercised. An
Option shall be exercisable at any time during an exercise period to
be notified by the Board to each grantee, provided that no Option
shall be exercisable later than ten years after its date of grant. The
subscription price of the options must be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown
on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a Share. HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible
Participant to the Company on acceptance of an offer of an Option,
which shall be paid within 14 days from the date of offer.

No share option has ever been granted under the New Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 25 June 2013, nor has the Scheme
Mandate Limit originally obtained at the time of adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme ever been refreshed. As at the date of this
report, 792,112,000 options (representing 8.33% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company) are available for grant under
the New Share Option Scheme (i.e. the Scheme Mandate Limit as
originally obtained on the date of approval of the New Share Option
Scheme on 25 June 2013). As at the beginning and the end of the
reporting period up to the date of this report, no option remained
outstanding under the New Share Option Scheme. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed the New Share Option
Scheme during both the reporting period and the comparative
period.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short

Position

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336

of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

of the Company

Name of Shareholders

RREB HE BEME

U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Ltd.

REAABAHERFRAR
(Note 1) (Hiz£ 1)

EnEAA

Cypress Dragons Limited
HEER AR EREAA
(Note 2) (B132)

Wang Guoju (Note 3)

Nature of interests

Beneficial Owner

Beneficial Owner

Interest of controlled

Number of
shares

ROBE

1,860,000,000

970,000,000

2,830,000,000

X

TERRZERZRAR

RZEBE-_—F+-ZA=+—8 XRAAESFH
BRITERABUAINZ AEZRAR T Z K5 &HE
BRI EE S RS EHIE 336 15R A
NEBE ALz EEFTAR T

RAEXRARDKAEBRGD 2HFE

Number of
underlying
shares
MR
BRHEAE

4,045,654,762

4,045,654,762

Total number
of shares and
underlying
shares

[ 8rig5d
HRARDEH

5,905,654,762

970,000,000

6,875,654,762

Approximate
percentage of
issued share
capital
HEBTRE
BRBED

62.13%

10.20%

72.33%

TRE (K7 3) corporation
RIEEE
Notes:

40

Based on the disclosure of interest (“DI") filings, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Limited (“UK Prolific”) is interested in 1,860,000,000 shares of the
Company (“Shares”) and convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) in the
principal amount of HK$679,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any interest with
right to convert the Convertible Notes into 4,045,654,762 Shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.168 per Share. Based on the DI filings, UK Prolific is wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Guoju.

Based on the DI filings, Cypress Dragons Limited (“"Cypress Dragons”), a
controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Wang Guoju, is interested in
970,000,000 Shares.

The deemed interests of Mr. Wang Guoju duplicates with the interest of shares
and underlying shares of UK Prolific in Note 1 above and the interest of shares of
Cypress Dragons in Note 2 above.
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Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
and Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related and Connected Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of
the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities Of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 32 of this
annual report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company. All
incumbent directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code through the year
under review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff,
and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Working Conditions

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with
the requirement set out in the CG Code. The Company recognizes
that the Board diversity is an essential element contributing to the
sustainable development of the Company. In designing the Board's
composition, the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
A Board Diversity Policy, with the aim of enhancing the quality of the
Board's performance by diversity, was adopted on 27 August 2013
and revised on 31 March 2016.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external seminars and
lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of legal,
compliance, financial accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through these types of training, we believe that the Group
can increase its efficiency and productivity while overall reduction of
risk and uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for the Directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills which includes seminars and
workshops, updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment
to the employees. In order to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment, the Group has upgraded and maintained tools, office
and IT equipment.
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Environment Protection

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group. The
Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staff to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged
to give their opinions regarding the environmental, social and
governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with safety
working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued in due
course.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by directors and chief executives of the Group is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the laws of Hong Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-sponsored retirement scheme organized by the PRC
Government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of payroll to the retirement scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect to
the retirement scheme is the required contributions under the
retirement scheme.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. Two out of
four audit committee members, namely, Mr. Lee Man Tai and Mr.
Cheng Chun Ying, possess recognised professional qualifications in
accounting and has experience in audit and accounting. No former
partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm acted as a member
of the audit committee within two years from ceasing to be a partner
or having any financial interest in the auditing firm. The audit
committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the
CG Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed
by the audit committee, which is of the opinion that such statements
complied with applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
other legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2021 have been audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR 23 GTE S

-y
Ijif) SR 7L
ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
51 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$353,513,000 as at 31 December 2021. This condition indicates a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined
the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Refer to Note 15 and Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tests the amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of interests in a Petroleum Contract in
relation to the drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of oil
and/or natural gas included in property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,150,303,000 and intangible assets of HK$1,279,596,000 as at
31 December 2021 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR 23 GTE S

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates);

Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting with the
external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation model,
and

Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group'’s impairment test for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets is supported by the available
evidence.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR 23 GTE S

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERmREMEERER

E_EBE-—F+-A=+—HIEE

REVENUE
Direct cost
Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Staff costs

Expenses related to short-term leases
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value gain of financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

Fair value loss of investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
Reversal of impairment of property,

plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment of intangible

assets

Expenses charged under Petroleum

Contract
Other operating expenses
Finance costs

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax (charge)/credit

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income after

tax:

Items that may be reclassified to profit

or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &
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Notes

fitet

15
16

17
19
15

19

2021 2020
—E-— TEC-EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
353,588 173,480
(47,683) (45,406)
8,654 7,672
(34,794) (30,308)
(20,276) (20,081)
(4,206) (587)
(40,668) (23,335)
(17,176) (10,453)
1,386 5,205
= (380)
(29,448) (22,867)
20,315 =
78,164 =
(11,557) (12,365)
(8,253) (14,481)
(46,278) (25,187)
201,768 (19,093)
(77,049) 4,397
124,719 (14,696)
42,543 104,651
353 906
167,615 90,861
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEmMHEHMEEIESR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —Z_——F+_A=1+—HILFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted

Notes
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2021 2020
=B —F —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
123,775 (14,173)
944 (523)
124,719 (14,696)
166,318 90,478
1,297 383
167,615 90,861
1.30 (0.15)
0.98 (0.15)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaMBRR R

At 31 December 2021 R=Z=-—%+=-HA=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Account receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a shareholder
Other borrowings

Total current liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
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Notes

fitet

15
16
18
19
21

22

23

24

25
27
26
28

2021 2020
=B —F —ECERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
1,229,496 1,001,332
17,299 14,699
50,899 97,172
1,279,596 1,199,563
33,973 109,532
2,611,263 2,422,298
1,213 78,687
37,654 36,269
34,168 52,129
167,280 167,985
240,315 335,070
470,201 627,471
11,178 7,393
32,589 29,730
79,860 =
593,828 664,594
(353,513) (329,524)
2,257,750 2,092,774
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e BT ISR R

At 31 December 2021 R=Z=-—F+=-A=+—H

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE
Other borrowings HEMEER
Convertible notes AR E IR
Total non-current liabilities IEmBaEEE
NET ASSETS REE
Equity =

Share capital [N
Reserves ]
Non-controlling interests e R
TOTAL EQUITY R

Notes

et

27
28
29

30

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Zhao Guogiang
HEEE
Director

EZE

F51 R 143 B 2 EA M HREN

2021 2020
—E=-— —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FAET
7,611 4,236
373,890 389,400
97,265 87,769
478,766 481,405
1,778,984 1,611,369
475,267 475,267
1,291,233 1,124,915
1,766,500 1,600,182
12,484 11,187
1,778,984 1,611,369
B oF=

AZT=ZREESSSHERKETE XA T

JEERREE

B RFIALTHEAE

Gu Quan Rong
BER

Director

EFE
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At 1 January 2020

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2021
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FaESBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_Z-_—F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERAER
Convertible Non-
Issued Contributed Share notes Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
B3 TH8EK FERER

BRTRE  RABR RORE RERE  ERRRE  RHER st Y35 ags
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FEL FET FET FET FET

RZTZE
—-A-A 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (217,293) (1,153,289) 1,509,704 10,804 1,520,508
FNER - - - - - (14,173) (14,173) (523) (14,696)
Hip2EaE
BEGINEBR
ERER

= = = = 104,651 = 104,651 906 105,557
FREAEKE/
(B s - - - - 104,651 (14,173) 90,478 383 90,861
NZTZEFE+ZR
=t+-A 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (112,642) (1,167,462) 1,600,182 11,187 1,611,369

RZE=Z—F—-f—H 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (112,642)  (1,167,462) 1,600,182 11,187 1,611,369

FREF - - - - - 123,775 123,775 944 124,719
Hip 2@
BEBIEBHER
=R

- - - - 42,503 = 42,543 353 42,896
FRZANEAE

= = = = 42,543 123,775 166,318 1,297 167,615
RZTZ—F
+-A=1+-R 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (70,099) (1,043,687) 1,766,500 12,484 1,778,984
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A B =
7 = | iﬁ:ﬁl)lbiﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_Z_——F+_A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:

RETHRENRE

BRETSTATE R, (E518)
LA TIRB(EHEAE -

Finance costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Interest income

Fair value loss on investment properties

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Exchange gain, net

Reversal of expected credit losses

Loss on written off of property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of Impairment of property, plant
and equipment

Reversal of Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment and amortisation of intangible
assets

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Change in accounts receivables

Change in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Change in amount due to a shareholder
Change in other payables and accruals

Net cash generated from operating
activities

56

BERAN
ME - BEMRBZITE

ERREEZFE

M BHA
REME 2 AV EEER
BAFBEFABSZEREE
Z R EENS

BEE 5 W 3 2R
BHEEEERD
WEHME - BERREZEER

W - R R R EEE
@ AR ERE

T A B
SABBEAB DAL EF
R 2 B
BB B REMERREZ
£

R — 2R RAEED

B4 (4 BB R A SOE

RETDHERES TR

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

2021 2020
=B —F —ECERF
HK$°000 HK$°'000
FET FET
201,768 (19,093)
46,278 25,187
40,668 23,335
17,176 10,453
(1,723) (1,907)

= 380
(1,386) (5,205)
(270) (57)
(1,604) (233)
21 =
(20,315) =
(78,164) =
29,448 22,867
231,897 55,727
77,497 74,989
18,511 (1,990)
2,755 =
(85,264) (70,209)
245,396 58,517




CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of exploration and evaluation

assets
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Advance from a shareholder
Proceeds from other borrowings

Interest paid
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash generated from financing

activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

year

Effect on exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

REEFHRTKE

WYX - BB R
WREE R MR B E

B HLE
BB AT
RATDASTE

A —E R

Rt BB 5
EFLE
BEREMNHK

BMETDAERES TR

ReREFRLHDFE
FNZRLREARS
EXLDHE

FRZEERERAE

RERERREZERDN

Be RIRTTEH

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv'.R =] iﬁ:ﬁ I}ILE%

E-E-—HF+-A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
=B —F —ECERF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
(216,959) (447,733)
(40,881) (26,725)
1,723 1,907
(256,117) (472,551)
= 179
53,550 362,637
(34,103) (6,871)
(15,256) (17,371)
4,191 338,574
(6,530) (75,460)
167,985 226,798
5,825 16,647
167,280 167,985
167,280 167,985
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated on 4 April 2001 as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at Office J, 29/F, Plaza 88, N0.88 Yeung Uk
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with
effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company, through its major subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in (i) oil and gas exploration; (ii) distribution of natural
gas; (iii) sales of food and beverages and (iv) money lending
business in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”), as at the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company
Limited (“U.K. Prolific”) is the single largest substantial
shareholder of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2021.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and
prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact
on its results of operations and financial position.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which also include
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the
applicable disclosure required by the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board Listing Rules”).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that year,
or in the year of the revision and future years if the
revision affects both current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

(i)

(ii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
financial assets at fair vaule through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair values.

Going concern basis

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely
depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$353,513,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore, the Group may
not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3. mEEEE)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(b) FFEEERSELERRE)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

(i) FEEEEEE)

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December
2021 are mainly attributable to property, plant and
equipment/exploration and evaluation cost payables
amounting to HK$399,660,000 (31 December
2020: HK$474,364,000). The Directors of the
Company are of the view that the Group will be
able to successfully persuade these contractors not
to insist on demanding repayment. However, there
is no certainty that these contractors will not
demand repayment.

In view of the net current liabilities position, the
Directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period
of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying
assumptions including (i) financial support from a
shareholder not to demand repayment within 12
months; (ii) the Group being able to successfully
persuade contractors not to insist on demanding
repayment of the construction cost payables; and
(iii) the Group being able to raise adequate funding
through bank borrowings or otherwise. Taking into
account the above assumptions, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the
twelve months from 31 December 2021.

REBR-_ZT-_—F+=A8
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company'’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(a) #ZEEREB

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. Relevant activities are activities
that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has joint
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its
assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its
liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its share of revenue from the sale of its share of
the output by the joint operation; and its expenses,
including its share of any expenses incurred jointly, in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Fore
(i)
(ii)

ign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of
the Group is Renminbi. The Directors consider that
choosing Hong Kong dollars as the presentation
currency best suits the needs of the shareholders
and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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(i)

(ii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(iii)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Prope
in pr
depre
item

rty, plant and equipment, other than construction
ogress, are stated at cost less accumulated
ciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
of property, plant and equipment comprises its

purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringi
for its

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #1

ng the asset to its working condition and location
intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTBE#®)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) d) % BERSE®)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance fees are recognised in profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and building 38 years
Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term

of the lease; if shorter
Furniture and fixtures 3-8 years
Motor vehicles 6-10 years
Natural gas pipeline 10 years
Oil properties Over the units of productions

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending for
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the year of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of the investment property are recognised in
profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or a
property held for sale, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment or properties held for sale as appropriate,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of
an exploration and evaluation assets may exceed its
recoverable amount. When one or more of the
following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, the Group shall perform an
impairment test in accordance with HKAS 36.

—  the year for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during
the year or will expire in the near future, and
is not expected to be renewed.

— substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

— exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area have not led to
the discovery of commercially viable
guantities of natural resources and the Group
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area.

— sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to
be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings 2-4 years
Motor vehicles 2-3 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

The interests in petroleum production sharing
contracts were amortised on unit of production

method.

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment of
assets (other than financial assets) below). If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent

of its revaluation surplus.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case
of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

—  Financial assets at amortised cost; and

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Financial assets (Continued)

(0]

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if
they do not meet the conditions to be measured at
amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as
at fair value through other comprehensive income
on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

)

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses
that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(m) Convertible notes

(m) AR RE

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any
derivative features embedded in the compound
instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible notes and the fair values assigned to the
liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the notes into equity of the
Company, is included in equity as capital reserve. The
liability component is carried as a liability at amortised
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The derivative components
are measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Company
appears to be less than the fair value of the convertible
notes issued, the Company measures the unidentifiable
services received (to be received) as the difference
between the fair value of the convertible notes issued
and that of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based on
their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The
portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Revenue from contracts with customers

(r)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the year between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised product or service exceeds one
year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

—  the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

Employment Ordinance long service
payments

Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(u) Taxation (Continued) (u) BIEH)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group'’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of

the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the entities comprising the
Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except investment properties, investments, deferred tax
assets and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(2)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

The Directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the Directors, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that, after taking into account of all
major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption as
set out in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets, oil
properties and construction in progress under property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets relating to
Kashi Project (“Kashi Project Assets”) for impairment
according to accounting policies stated in Notes 4(f), 4(h)
and 4(x) to the consolidated financial statements. The
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.
While conducting an impairment review of the assets, the
Group makes certain judgement in making assumptions
including the volume of gas to be extracted during the
forecast period, the timing in commencing the
development stage and commercial production, future
gas prices and production costs, changes in these
estimates may result in significant variance to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In estimating the value in use of
Kashi Project Assets, the Group has made reference to
the natural gas price based on the selling price
information and other documents exchanged and items
agreed during the joint committee meeting between the
representative of CNPC and the Group. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of Kashi Project
Assets was approximately HK$2,480,794,000 (2020:
approximately HK$2,221,396,000). Reversal of
impairment of HK$98,479,000 on Kashi Project Assets
(2020: Nil) were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Estimation of gas resources and/or reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s gas reserves and
resources are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information. There
are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated gas reserves
can be designated as “proved”. Proved reserves estimates
will be updated at least annually and take into account
recent production and technical information about each
field. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from
year to year, the estimate of proved reserves also changes.
The change will be considered as a change in estimation
for accounting purposes and is reflected on a prospective
basis in related depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Amortisation rates are determined
based on estimated proved reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-
production method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements, deferred income tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilised, and it is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred income tax assets to be
recognised, management is required to estimate the future
applicable tax rate for each subsidiary of the Company at
each tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each subsidiary,
so as to estimate the future utilisation of tax losses. Any
difference between these estimates and the actual outcome
will impact the Group's result in the year in which the actual
outcome is determined.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

5.

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H
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90

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate reserves to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with the
Group’s internal organization and reporting structure, the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following three reportable segments:

The Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural Gas
segment is engaged in the exploration, development,
production and sales of natural gas and the usage of pipeline
for distribution of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the sales of food and beverages.

The Money Lending Business segment is engaged in provision
of loans to third parties.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7
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A IR SRR M EE

December 2021 —E-—F+_-F=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEKkIEER @)
(Continued)
The segment information provided to the Board for the BHE_E-_—FRr-_ZE-_ZETF+_HA
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2021 =t+—HIEFE  BA2KsrHFrnEES
and 2020 are as follows: RO HEROT
(a) Information about reportable segment () EETEHsHWE - &BF
revenue, profit or loss and other BEENEREEMER
information
Exploration, Sales of
Production and Food and Money
Distribution Beverages Lending
of Natural Gas Business Business Total
RAREF - HERRK
EERDH HeEL S BEER st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-E-—-£1+=H
31 December 2021 =t+t—HUEEE
Revenue from external customers  SMEB% P 7 Uik 353,588 = = 353,588
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7] 2% Bk FrS R Al
before income tax Al (EE) 222,969 (1,142) (143) 221,684
Segment results included: NEBEEELE
Interest income FBEWA 1,230 - - 1,230
Interest expense MERAL (36,782) - - (36,782)
Depreciation of property, plant %1% - BEREREZITE
and equipment (38,868) (246) - (39,114)
Depreciation of right-of-use FRELEEZNE
assets (17,176) - - (17,176)
Amortisation of intangible assets £ & E#iH (29,448) - - (29,448)
Reversal of impairment of M - BE RS ERER
property, plant and equipment gl 20,315 - - 20,315
Reversal of impairment of B EERBREE
intangible assets 78,164 - - 78,164
Income tax charge F8RiEx (77,049) - - (77,049)
Addition to capital expenditures BB 37N 207,160 - - 207,160
As at 31 December 2021 N-E-_—-F+=A
=+—H
Reportable segment assets AEWMHEHEE 2,722,566 663 18 2,723,247
Reportable segment liabilities AERHHAE (941,512) - - (941,512)
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e B IS SRR b BE

31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WHERDIBER (&)

(Continued)

(a) Information about reportable segment () EBEAE2HoBWE  BEF
revenue, profit or loss and other REENERREMER (&)
information (Continued)

Exploration, Sales of
Production and Food and Money
Distribution Beverages Lending
of Natural Gas Business Business Total
RAREIE - HERM
FEERDHE REEY WEER st
HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT AT FET
For the year ended BE-Z-ZF+=AH
31 December 2020 =t—-HLEEE
Revenue from external customers  SMERE P 2 Unzs 173,480 = = 173,480
Reportable segment loss before K& P15 A1 A] 2 5 26
income tax =] (4,700) (1,187) (145) (6,032)
Segment results included: DEEEOLRE
Interest income FEWA 1,484 - - 1,484
Interest expense MEFRAL (16,617) = = (16,617)
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #% - BRERHE T E
and equipment (22,410) (246) - (22,656)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEEZNE
assets (10,453) - - (10,453)
Amortisation of intangible assets /& EE#E i (22,867) = = (22,867)
Income tax credit FrEtiE e 4,397 = = 4,397
Addition to capital expenditures &R 120 338,551 - = 338,551
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BFE+-A
S
Reportable segment assets ARfDHEE 2,617,568 1,004 18 2,618,590
Reportable segment liabilities AIEHNEBaE (1,027,134) (315) - (1,027,449)
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31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WHERDIBER 2

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) TIEHAoWHEAHEE - &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERE8EBHER
2021 2020
—B-—F —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BAT BB ADER, (BE)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) before ] 2 5 &R Fr 1S 55 BT % ),
income tax (BE) 221,684 (6,032)
Other income HA A 630 494
Fair value gain of financial assets at fair & QA FEEFABRSZEBE
value through profit or loss EZ A EENE 1,386 5,205
Fair value loss of investment properties & &% 2 AN F(BEEE - (380)
Finance costs BhE A (9,496) (8,570)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EC4APEE R N A AIFI S
expenses (12,436) (9,810)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETISFLATRT],(E8) 201,768 (19,093)
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31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkoEER @)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) TERS P ENHEE - B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREEZHE®)
(Continued)
2021 2020
=B —F —ECEREF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2WMHHBEE 2,723,247 2,618,590
Property, plant and equipment Y - B REE 55,004 56,545
Other receiveables, deposits and E R EIE - e RFEAR
prepayments | 12,806 12,205
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEHEFABEZERE
profit or loss BE 37,654 36,269
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHEER 22,867 33,759
Total assets BE#E 2,851,578 2,757,368
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AZWmoHaE 941,512 1,027,449
Convertible notes AT AR R 97,265 87,769
Amount due to a shareholder FES—RARRFKIE 32,589 29,730
Other payables and accruals ot fE T R8I FERTRUIE 1,228 1,051
Total liabilities BERRE 1,072,594 1,145,999
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

with customers:

Geographical markets
The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC")

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time

Geographical markets
The PRC

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

BB
2 ARAFE ([ )

TEERRHE

W 325 e 2 By
NG

HE ™S
PE

TEERRHB

W 328 e 2 By
NG

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WZRDIBER &)
(Continued)
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () 2IFKEEFEHZ2HE:

Exploration,

Production and

Distribution 2021
of Natural Gas Total
RARBE - —E--

EERDH et
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
353,588 353,588
353,588 353,588
353,588 353,588
Exploration,
Production and
Distribution 2020
of Natural Gas Total
RAREIR - —E-ETF
EERDHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
173,480 173,480
173,480 173,480
173,480 173,480
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6.

96

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers: (Continued)

Sales of natural gas

The Group explores and sells natural gas to the customer.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to a
customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Revenue from major customers:

Exploration, Production and Distribution — RAFENE « £&E

of Natural Gas segment R #HDE
Customer A BEPA
Customer B ®FB

Geographic information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than deferred tax assets (”Specified non-current
assets”).

6.

Wz & 7

B

HEE 2

(0 2HREFEFEHNZWE:

(%)

HEXAR

ARBYRRATS HEXAE

o

HEREmEH#EER (AMEM®

R FEPE) » SEA]

ab B 488
REFERF

BEMERIABITRERRERFE
FERRE fn 2 BRI A RERTRERR ©

(d) REETEEF2WH :

2021
—E——

HK$°000

FHETT

339,920
13,668

2020
—E-TE

—= =

HK$°000
THETT

163,342
10,138

(e) HEEHR

TREJAEBEBINEEP 2
mMIERBEE(CEERBAEER
SM(THEEFERBEE ) DT -

Revenue from external customers

Specified non-current assets

MREE 2 Wz BEFRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—BC--F S =3 —E--F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &% (%) = = 55,352 57,138
The PRC H 353,588 173,480 2,521,938 2,255,628
353,588 173,480 2,577,290 2,312,766
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A IR SRR M EE

OTHER INCOME

Interest income

Reversal of expected credit losses

Government subsidies (note)

Administrative and management fee
income

Others

note: Government subsidies represent the gross amount received from
Employment Support Scheme provided by the government of Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on other borrowings (Note 28)
Interest on convertible notes (Note 29)
Interest on other payables (Note 25)
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 27)

B RE (i)
T REEERA

FE (Hfa£28)

AT SRS (At 29)
HAb R BRI S (HaE25) -
BERNE (MiF27)

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

Hal A
2021 2020
—E-— TECEF
HK$’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
1,723 1,907
1,604 233
- 242
5,057 5,233
270 57
8,654 7,672

Bfat - BRI RB R 2 I B B A BT U BUR SR 469

METIRAEPESHSEE -
LS =ga %N
2021 2020
—E-— —ECEF
HK$’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
34,103 6,871
9,496 8,570
8,853
2,679 893
46,278 25,187
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31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

10.

98

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9.

The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax is stated after
charging:

Auditors’ remuneration % ERAT BN

Staff costs (including directors’ EIXRAN(BIFEESIHE)

remuneration):
Wages and salaries and other benefits Iﬁ& g M E AR
Pension fund contributions RIREHER

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group
had no material forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension schemes in future years.

INCOME TAX (CHARGE)/CREDIT 10.

The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — the PRC BUEAFE I— R
Charge for the year KEEEH
Deferred tax (charge)/credit (Note 21(a)) EERIB(FY), R
(Hte£21(a)
Total income tax (charge)/credit FTisHt (X)) HEeiesE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not have assessable profit for the year.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

BREFBHANRR,(E18)

REBER IS MWmﬁ/%ﬁiﬁmﬁ
BRIATBIRRIR

2021 2020
=F=—F it

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FHET

950 920

20,188 19,994

88 87

20,276 20,081

R-B-_—F+-_A=+—HBR=F=
TEF_A=1—8 AEEALEHAH
PR R F E HR H R R & 5 81 R 1
FRBEARRREH ©

FrE®t (%), H%

ReEmaEMEEEERANTER

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH#TT FET
(77,049) 4,397
(77,049) 4,397

HRASBEARFEYL EERBGEF - BRI
ERBRBNEHIELEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX (CHARGE)/CREDIT (Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (“EIT")and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law in the PRC, the
statutory EIT rate in the PRC is 25% (2020: 25%). In
accordance with the approval from the local taxation bureau in
the PRC, certain PRC subsidiary of the Group were entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The reconciliation between income tax charge/(credit) and
profit/(loss) before income tax is as follows:

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profit/(loss) in the respective
countries

Tax effect of income not taxable and
expenses not deductible

Tax effect of change in tax rate

Tax effect of temporary differences

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
previously recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

BGEE

7
2
Income tax charge/(credit) for the year
11. DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31

December 2021 (2020: Nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of reporting period.

BRPrSBiATER (E518)

BEEH By E
T RE BT E
B AR ERBBE B BS

FAMSH(FX)/ R

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

10. FREH (BAR) "% (@)

REBEEEMESIOE(REREBRE]D K
REIBEMERAERGD - RBLZAE
TEMBRERBW(ZZE_ZTF:
25%) - WIFFEEMBHH 2 ELL - K
SEETHENBARARBE_T_—
FT_A=1t-BLFEERZEER
PSR E 15% °

FERBE % (%) 8% 5 S B AT

mEaBEZz RN/ (BR)ERZ
ARG H 2 IR

BERBWARTAINRA 2

RERZ R ABIBRE 2B

T (BR) 2HENT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEr
201,768 (19,093)
29,852 (3,022)
7,808 (1,522)
39,792 -
(5) (6)
(447) (67)
49 220
77,049 (4,397)

11. K&
BE T -+ _-_A=+—BHItFE

3 R S BRA RB(—F 4
) RS BRI EARE -
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31 December 2021 —E£-_—%+_A=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12. BRER,(FHE)
(a) BREXEF (EE)
FREXEF, (BB BEEAF

A ANRIMEEN,(ER) RAFA
BERTEBRMINETFORTE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETEF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of RREHEB NG ST
the Company /(&) 123,775 (14,173)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

100

FREXRF,(BR)

Number of Shares

EEITEARINEFIIH

R&GEA
9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000
HK Cents
AL

1.30 (0.15)
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is based on the following data:

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Adjustments for interest on convertible notes

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
convertible notes

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

12. BRERN (&EE)#)
(b) BEREBEERN (EE)
BE-—T-——#+-A=+—A1t
EF - ANTEA ARG, SRS
SERF TR TERE E

31 December

2021

R-E-—F

t+=HA=+-—-H

HK$'000

F#ET

QA RHEE A BT 123,775

AR R F B/EH 2 T 9,496
TEEREERFZARNBEEA

FE(R S F 133,271

Number of shares

R B E

BT E AR I T 8
MR RE OB EEEERR 2 E
2 4,045,654,761

9,505,344,000

AFEESREERN BRI

B 13,550,998,761
HK Cents

Al

HlEE AR 0.98
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31 December 2021 —E£-_—%+_A=+—H

13.

102

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. ESci=
The emoluments of each director, equivalent to key BREE7 N (BENTESEAEMS)
management compensation, are as follows: wm

Executive directors
Zhao Guogiang

Non-executive directors
Gu Quan Rong

Independent non-executive
directors
Cheng Chun Ying
Lee Man Tai
Zong Ketao

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_2-_-5+-A=+-HLHFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind contributions remuneration

e 1 RIKEA
e  REWNGE at B FEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET
HITES
izz|EAEE 1,482 245 = 1,727
FHITES
B4 120 = = 120
BYHTES
BIRE 120 = = 120
E3E 120 = = 120
REbE 120 = = 120
1,962 245 = 2,207
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

13.

BEECME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-SFH-AS+-ALSE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind  contributions  remuneration
£ = RINER
we REDNZ FTEIfER FilazE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH#ET FET FET T
Executive directors HITES
Zhao Guogiang R 1,183 206 - 1,389
Non-executive directors FHITES
Gu Quan Rong Brs 120 = = 120
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
directors
Cheng Chun Ying iR E 120 = = 120
Lee Man Tai ER @R 120 - - 120
Zong Ketao =EE 120 = = 120
1,663 206 - 1,869

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BE-_T-—F+_-_A=+—HItFEE"
BEZEEREXARAERETHNE(=ZZ
ZEF E) BE_T - —F+=A
—t+—HIEFE  ARATEREE I
B <& DAWR S| 18 hn A A SE B 5k fE A p1 A 88
SHHBHE(CE_EE |) .
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n'ﬁ

31 December 2021 —ZF—

14.

104

Lk R L

—E W= A=1KSR

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 14. REEEHMA L
EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year RAFE  AEEREAZEFMALTEE
included one (2020: one) director whose emoluments are —Z(ZE-TF: —Z)EF HM%
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of ERMEEXZFM DT o« Hermmg (=
the remaining four (2020: four) individuals are set out below: ToTF E) AL 2 HMESIT
2021 2020
——F T -FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Salaries and allowances e MoEaL 6,602 3,803
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R RIEFIET 250 54 36
6,656 3,839
The emoluments of the individual fall within the following BAZHFN T T5EE -
band:
Number of individuals
EBE A
2021 2020
b —F-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 87T 2 3
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 7T = 2,000,000 7% 7T 1
HK$4,000,000 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,000 7T 2 4,500,000 75 7T 1 -

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments was paid or payable to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.
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A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE

Leasehold land Leasehold  Furniture and Motor  Natural gas Oil  Construction
and buildings  improvements fixtures vehicles pipeline properties  in progress Total
HETHRET BHENEEE  GARRE RE  RRREE R ERIR a5
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr Fér TiEn Fir Tér Fér Fér TEr

Cost A
At 1 January 2020 RZF-Z5-F-H = 1437 1,019 6,546 21,29 728,224 231,863 996,384
Additions AE - 340 102 - - 2,284 264,721 267,447
Transferred from exploration R EEERIHEE

and evaluation assets (i 18)

(Note 18) 56,300 - - - - - - 56,300
Transfer LA - - - - - 490,696 (490,69) -
Exchange differences EXES - 64 7 34 1985 84,051 2612 89,123
At31December200and  W=ZF-FF+-f=1-A

1 January 2021 k=%=-%-8-8 56,300 184 1,198 6,880 29,280 1,305,255 8,500 1,409,254
Additions AE = 852 45 26 5912 62,049 62,685 131,629
Transferred from exploration ~ EE B BFEE (Hii18)

and evaluation assets

(Note 18) - - - - - 90,310 - 90,310
Witten off s - - (65) - - - - (65)
Transfer L1 - - - - - 33,292 (33,292) -
Exchange differences EXES - 38 29 125 845 3434 1852 37,30
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+-B=t-H 56,300 2,731 1,207 7,031 36,097 1,525,241 39,745 1,668,358

Accumulated depreciation ~ ZHTERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZFZZF-F-H = 712 740 5,292 6,987 331,483 12,000 357,274
Charge for the year Ehx 617 110 71 478 2644 19,409 - 333
Transfer i - - - - - 12,109 (12,109) =
Exchange differences EiZH = 58 60 318 675 26,093 109 21313
At31December 200and  R-B-BE+-A=t-HR

1 January 2021 “E--5-A-A 617 940 871 6,088 10,306 389,094 - 407,922
Charge for the year ERZL 1482 u 101 6 2835 35,757 - 40,668
Written off b = - (44) - - - _ (44)
Reversal of impairment HEEE - - - - - (20315) - (20315)
Exchange differences EXES = 25 23 120 310 10,153 - 10,631
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+-B=t-H 2,099 1212 957 6,454 13451 414,689 - 438,862

Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+-B=t-H 54,201 1519 250 5711 22,646 1,110,558 39,745 1,229,496
At 31 December 2020 RZFZTF+ZR=1-A 55,683 901 3N 792 18974 916,161 8,500 1,001,332
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31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE#)
(Continued)
The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of BEAEEMERMAIER (T& RFBAK
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 19) annually. 19) T AN E A EE TR - REEE
These assets are used in the Group’s Exploration, Production AR AEBRXARIG £ EMDHED
and Distribution of Natural Gas segment. Reversal of EF o —%——iﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬂﬁzo,aw,ooo
impairment of HK$20,315,000 was recognised for 2021 (2020: BT(ZE-TF &) ARRMIEEN
Nil) as the carrying amount of the related cash-generating unit T Eﬁ’f? BN ((REELEEN]) 2
("CGU") for the Kashi Project approximates its recoverable AREEMUE T EI£%E - HEEE 27
amount. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets has WE<zEVFEAERBS RE A RBEE
been determined on the basis of their value in use using FEHRE ﬁ%uﬁzm P A 2 B R B BLIE &
discounted cash flow method. The pre-tax discount rate used £16.8% (ZZT_FF : 16.8%) °
was 16.8% (2020: 16.8%).
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: THEMBEIEER 2 5%
2021 2020
=B —F —ECERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 31 December: W+=A=+—8":
Right-of-use assets HRAEEE
— Land and buildings — T REF 13,959 10,122
— Motor vehicles — )R8 3,340 4,577
17,299 14,699
Lease commitments of short-term leases %2 EATR & 2 T E#AJE = 59
The maturity analysis, based on AEEHEAGEREIMIRRE
undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s I EEITZEIE B ST T :
lease liabilities is as follows:
— Less than 1 year D1 F 12,297 7,921
— Between 1 and 2 years —1&E2F 7,678 4,436
— Between 2 and 5 years —2EGSF 211 =
20,186 12,357
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A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. FHEEE &)
2021 2020
—E=-— —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRIEEEZINEER
— Land and buildings — T BT 13,082 6,229
— Motor vehicles — A= 4,094 4,224
17,176 10,453
Lease interests HERE 2,679 893
Expenses related to short-term leases BREHEENS N 4,206 587
Total cash outflow for leases MER SN H AR 19,462 17,958
Additions to right-of-use assets ERAREERE 19,365 13,629
The Group leases various land and buildings and motor AEBHEAETFT I RIEFURAE -
vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods EmE—METER2E4F - HEBKK
of 2 to 4 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual RAE R B ERE R BERR RIRGE B TE -
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and MEWRI EmEINERRE - EHEEE
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants TMEREEENERR -
and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

17.

108

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17.

At 1 January n—H—H

Fair value losses NI EEBE

Transferred to property, plant and EEEYE - WE KRR
equipment (Note 15) (Kt#E15)

At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—8H

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at the date
of transfer to property, plant and equipment.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing
fair value balance is provided below:

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair FUER(BE=REBIER
value)

Fair value losses (#) NEEEEBE#)

Transferred to property, plant and EEEYE - WE RS
equipment (Note 15) (Hiat15)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) F#2 458K (FE = REE D

REWM=E

2021 2020

== ﬂi — 7 —% $

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET T

- 56,680
- (380)

- (56,300)

AEERENENBEEDE - BEKIXR

BEHZAVEE-

REMEZ A FEEBE=AKLETLELR
FEENE - FVIRFRAFEERESHRZ

HERMT ¢

2021 2020
=B —F il e a3
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET

FEE)
- 56,680
- (380)
- (56,300)
~HEE) - =

(#) Include gains or losses for assets held at B IERIHRE EIRFTIFEE 2 Wk

end of reporting period k& 1E
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18. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Cost 5%
At 1 January n—H—H
Additions NE

Transferred to property, plant and

18. BIERRFLEE

HEEME  BEX

equipment (Note 15) BCAC ERED,
Exchange differences MEH =58
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H
Accumulated impairment RiHREE
At 1 January mn—H—H
Exchange differences EHERE
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
99,937 22,698
40,881 71,104
(90,310) -
3,227 6,135
53,735 99,937
2,765 2,578

71 187

2,836 2,765
50,899 97,172

The exploration and evaluation assets represents costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that
are capitalised and pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas reserves have
been discovered.

As the development stage was commenced from 9 July 2019
as stated in Note 19, the Directors considered that the
exploration and evaluation assets capitalised in the previous
years and utilitised for generating revenue in the development
stage should be reclassified as oil properties under Property,
Plant and Equipment (Note 15).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 19) annually.
These assets are used in the Group’s Exploration, Production
and Distribution of Natural Gas segment. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets has been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method.
The pre-tax discount rate used was 16.8% (2020:16.8%).

HRRFEEERDRT 2 ERAEK
R (ERAA R E ) - BRI -
FEECREACRETHUENREAER
B KR AR o

HREREBREBE=-Z—NLFLANA
FRER (K I19FR) EFERBERN
BAFEERAMUNERBEEARELE
WHZHREERFHEERETH»EAY
¥ BERIEBTZ2HHWEMTE
15) ©

FEASEHERMTIER (EELFBAN
F19) 2B S REHEITIRG - ZEEE
ARAEBRARDE FERDHED
o MR EE 2 RIS E AR
ERmEFRBEEFRAEARTUETE - 1A
ZHRIBRATBEIR R B168% (T _Z 4 :
16.8%) °
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n'ﬁ

31 December 2021 —ZF—

19.

110

Lk R L

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

—E W= A=1KSR

Cost [2AS

At 1 January n—H—H
Exchange differences MEH =R

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H

Accumulated amortisation and Rt #HEREE
impairment

At 1 January —H—H
Amortisation 5|
Reversal of impairment YRR
Exchange differences MEHZER

At 31 December R+TZA=+—H

Carrying amount BRMEE

At 31 December RTZA=+—H

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Petroleum

Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, amortisation of
HK$29,448,000 (2020: HK$22,867,000) was provided. Details
of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC in relation to the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC (the “Kashi Project”).
CNPC is a stated-owned company established in the PRC.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

9. BILEE

2021 2020
——fF —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
2,849,785 2,656,579
72,452 193,206
2,922,237 2,849,785
1,650,222 1,515,681
29,448 22,867
(78,164) -~
41,135 111,674
1,642,641 1,650,222
1,279,596 1,199,563

B EEROMENED  HIREEBN
SEEE c BE B - —F+=-A=+—8H
IEFE - E%‘+$%%§Mﬁ’%§{%294480003
T(ZZ —F 4 22,867,000/ 7C) °
Wz FBFMmT

R-ZZBZENF+-_A-+-H  #EFK
EAREAREERI Y T AHAK - RS
BB AR RBER - B - 5
BREEABRHRAR( R4 E
BB aEEARTEKRZINEE
X -
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agreed to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Petroleum Contract is 30 years from
1 June 2009, subject to extension.

Pursuant to Petroleum Contract, China Era shall bear all costs
required for the evaluation operations, and the development
costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the proportions
of 51% and 49%, respectively. In addition, CNPC’s portion of
operating costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered
from the production of crude oil and/or natural gas.

Under the terms of the Petroleum Contract, the evaluation
costs, development costs and operating costs are to be
recovered according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil/gas
and investment recovery oil/gas. Remaining oil/gas, after cost
recovery, all applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the
PRC, is share oil/gas, which is apportioned between 51% by
CNPC and 49% by China Era.

In March 2015, the Group has issued formal application to
CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the exploration
period of the Kashi Project beyond the original deadline of 31
May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the cooperation site has
not been completed. On 6 December 2017, the Group and
CNPC entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the
exploration period.

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

9. BEEE#®)

RER_ZZENF+_ARFIZAHE
B PEFERARRTES REAETE
Mk EREEREFEOHEEEIE - A
FAFP B 3 5B 4 B K A 4 M A1 Jb [ 58 ) 3%
REERBR/FRAR - AMEL &
RFEHAE _TTNFRA— B30
FoHRAITER -

REABEH - PEFRBEAENGEES
PR ATA A - T R 3R AN A R B A
SERFEFERDRNIZ51% 249% 2t
DIASE - ptoh - PERAMEBAIGRENX
REDEATEFRRN  WEBLEER
R HRARME -

RIBOME K2R - FHERA ~ FEX
AR A& KA ZRRIBR A B Yo, R R &
B EUYOH, SRS E o gt EARAS - 8
AP BEEAM A BERTIAERERRE
Regpzm RiE - RABH/R - Bf
BamEEEPBEFRDHD1651% K
49% -

R-ZE—RE=A AEERTELHE
BEXRHI TR - R A ERIBAN
WREBRE2ETK - BiltBHEEZ
HMERBRRIN_E—AFREA=1—
BEEImE AREY - BERTEABE
BERFHHRARERMF - R-2F—+
F+-ARA - AEEEGELHEEED
RIMATEH R - AERENREIR -
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19.

112

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group has been carrying out exploration and evaluation
activities at the site and working with professional parties to
prepare data and information that are required for the ODP for
government approval before full production could be started.
Pursuant to the circular published by the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China on 27 February 2019, the ODP is no
longer required to be approved by the National Development
and Reform Commission but is only subject to new filing
requirements. Per the agreement with CNPC, the commercial
stage would be commenced when (i) the construction
infastructure for gas production stated in the Kashi project at
Akemomu, North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, China (the
“Akemomu Gas Field”) is completed and being commenced
for production for 90 days; or (ii) when the total gas production
volume in the Akemomu Gas Field reached 300,000,000 cubic
meters of gas. The commencement date of commercial stage
would be confirmed and announced by joint committee
meeting afterwards. On 25 July 2019, the Group received a
resolution of the Joint Management Committee of North Kashi
Block Cooperation Project that the filing of the ODP of the
Akemomu Gas Field was completed on 8 July 2019 and the
development stage commenced from 9 July 2019. By the
resolution of the Joint Management Committee of North Kashi
Block Cooperation Project on 16 October 2020, the commercial
production stage was commenced with effect from 1 October
2020.

note: Reversal of impairment of HK$78,164,000 of intangible assets (2020:
HK$Nil) was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021 as the
recoverable amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project exceeds its carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project was
HK$2,480,794,000 (2020: HK$2,224,385,000) based on value in use
calculation using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value
measurements) and by reference to the valuation report produced by
APAC. The pre-tax discount rate used for value in use calculations is
16.8% (2020: 16.8%) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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9. BEEE#®)

AEE - EFREEIEEES -
RIEHEEATAE NS EREBREIR
Bz BERER  UEBRFEH - Hi%
FEEFRE2EARE - REFEARLMNE
BN T —AF_A-—++tB%M
R AEREARETNELERER
M EZ et E  EAFTASBENTHE
o REEPRAHREE AR - B
EBEEBROULNFBEEERAHIE
FERNTZER((MRERARH]) S
BAIEE PR AREEER R
TRERIZEH : ()i ARR
FH /) K 28 S48 7 & 5 300,000,000 37 7 2K
BrHE - mECEBENFEEBSHERBR
HEZECERLERTEREM - R=F
—hWELtA-+HEB » REEREIEMTL
ERAIEHABATEZE @ RE MR
EARFRHBEBAEFRN_Z—NLFt
BNHZRBRFE IR —T—hF+t
ANABEAFERE - BRE_S-TF
+RA+ABRAIEREGEEERESE
BEEGVRHE  BEEERN_ZT=
TE+HF BB -

et - BREAEERSELAENZ JKESESR
HEEHEE  WRBE_E-_—F+_A=+—
A FEEREREERERE 78,164,000 %5
T(ZZEZTF  THL) - BT EEZREE
A8z A E £ 584 2,480,794,0008 L (=
T T4 1 2,224,385,000/87T) © ZEEIE
AR BEREA(E=RAFEEH2)IRIE
FABEFERSEDARUNGEERSE
E - HE_T-_—F+_A=+—HLEE"
ATEEREEMRANBATRNIERA16.8% (=
TFF 1 16.8%) ©
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(o)

Result for the year

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has recognised revenue approximately of
HK$339,920,000 (2020: HK$163,342,000) from the
sales of natural gas arising from its interests in a
Petroleum Contract and the profit before income tax for
the year for the sales of natural gas was approximately
HK$221,694,000 (2020: loss before income tax of

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

19. BLEE &)

(a) AFEERE

REBEE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8H
IHFE  AEERRKXRBERAM
AR EREE ZHERAR KRS
#7339,920,0008 (=T —ZF :
163,342,000% 7T ) K & B Al i )
RNBERXRBZMBERD A
221,694,000 T(ZFE=_FF : K

HK$3,784,000).

Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

Exploration and evaluation assets RN B E
Intangible assets EmAE
Deferred tax assets FERIAE E
Current assets mENEE
Current liabilities mENAE
Non-current liabilities ERBAE

Net assets BEFE
Commitments

Capital commitments: BAAEHE

Contracted but not provided for in
respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment
and exploration and evaluation
expenditures

Fr {57 i 548 3,784,000 58 7T ) °

(b) EERAE

ERTAMERH T 5 FREE

— W% - BB KA R ETE R

BEEIEE

2021 2020
—E—— —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
1,151,420 925,161
50,899 97,172
1,279,596 1,199,563
33,973 109,532
163,410 248,533
(470,785) (625,518)
(461,362) (393,636)
1,747,151 1,560,807
(o) #¥E
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETFF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FETL
114,575 115,501
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

114

20. RMIB AT 2R

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2021 are as follows:

Name

AL

China Energy Resources Holdings Ltd

PRERERERAR

Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong
Kong) Limited
HEREEE (FH)ARAA

China Era Energy Power Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited
REERERIRE (BB BRAR

Zhong Neng Finance Limited
PREBERAR
Di Maria Limited

BBNE AR A

Team Lucky Development Limited
AEERARLA

Fortune Great Limited
EBARAH

RABKEERB L IBRAR
(Karamay Fuhai Petroleum
Chemical Engineering Co., Limited)*

RUBKE SRR IERAR

AUBKEBRRERAR
(Karamay Weirun Gas Co., Limited)*

RABKEERRERAR

Form of business
structure

EXERTA

Limited liability company

BRAE

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRAA

Limited liability company
BRAA

Limited liability company
BRAR

Limited liability company
BRAR

Limited liability company

ARAF

Limited liability company

BRAH

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
ERAL/
RIER/ %

Hong Kong
&R

British Virgin Islands
ABRAES
Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
5

PRC
RE

PRC

e

Country/place
of operation

BEER/WE

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
PRC
il

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
EE

PRC

e

PRC

HE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

*  The English names are for identification only

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

TEMBRRZFHBNT

Principal activities

IREH

Sales of food and
beverages and
investment holding

BERRRAME
BRREER

Investment holding

REZR

Oil and gas
exploration

HREHR

Money lending
&

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding
REAER

Investment holding

RERR

Distribution of
natural gas

DERRR

AKRAR_ZBE-_—F+-_A=+—HZ

Issued and fully paid

share capital

ERTRAERA

Ordinary share HK$1

TRRIET

Ordinary share US$1
LaR1 T
Ordinary share HK$1
LRk

Ordinary share HK$1
LaR1 AT

Ordinary share
HK$10,000
LMk 10,0007

Ordinary share HK$2
Lam2AT

Ordinary share HK$1
TER1AET

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000

HMERARY
5,000,0007¢

Registered capital
RMB130,000,000

HMERARY
130,000,0007¢

Percentage of
interests held
BERERAL
Directly Indirectly
BB S
100% =
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
= 100%
= 100%
= 51%
- 2601%

ZEHBARRFERREZITERNBES

g s
g ©

* BEXEBEHRZS
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. IEEBIIE
(@) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) () FARGAFBRRERDERZIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ERBEE/(BRF)EKXID LE
position and the movements during the year are as E N
follows:
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from: BERIEEE (BB ELS
Exploration
costs Tax losses Total
BhHRER A HEEE iz
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHEIT FEIT FET
(Note)
(K17t)
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZFF—H—H 14,804 85,222 100,026
Credited to profit or loss during &+ AFRIEZR
the year (note 10) (K1zE10) 3,196 1,201 4,397
Exchange differences EH =% (1,165) 6,274 5,109
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZZF+A
1 January 2021 =+—HkK
—E-—F—HF—H 16,835 92,697 109,532
Charged to profit or loss during s+ AFRIEZR
the year (note 10) (KtzE10) (31,074) (45,975) (77,049)
Exchange differences PE 3 =58 (94) 1,584 1,490
At 31 December 2021 RN-ZE-——%F
+=—A=+-— (14,333) 48,306 33,973
note: Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) represented deductible/taxable Mat: BERBEE /(BB RXBREFERZH
temporary difference in relation to exploration and evaluation BRRGEES) 2 BRR TR, AR R A
activities in the PRC and the recoverability depends on the future AU Bl M BUR AR AT I8 B 2 R R A FIRE S o

profitability of the Kashi Project.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances BLRA 75 R 3 B B 2 R T T IB A5 #R 5 AT 40
for financial reporting purposes: T ¢

2021 2020

:g:—qi — 7 —% f‘E

HK$000 HK$°000

FET TFET

Deferred tax assets RIERIBE &= 33,973 109,532
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31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative Hong Kong tax losses of
approximate HK$17,571,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$18,061,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the
entity. The Hong Kong tax losses will not expire under
the current relevant tax legislation.

10% PRC dividend withholding tax would be payable on
the distribution of undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, no deferred tax liabilities have been

RERLIE ()
(b) RERELEHREEE

AEEVEENR T =_—F+=A
Zt+—HEFEBHEEBEYD
17,571,000 T( = & = & F:
18,061,000/ ) ERELEFHEE
E REARERZEBEKEEAE
BETKRAGEENSHAZERE Y
RRERTEF o BIRIBITAEBR
% BAMBEBBE TSR -

REBBIE 10% FLo KA R B
ZHBARZAS Af&m?’r'J%ZZWPI
BRI N —F R

—EF¥+=-A=+—8" Iz%zr'i;%

recognised as the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have no & 2 A B8 A | I A R R S
undistributed profits. A BERREHELHIBEAE -

22. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES 22. FEWEBRX

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET FAEIT
Account receivables (note (a)) FEWERFR (M7t (a)

— Sales of natural gas — HERAR 1,213 78,694

Loan and interest receivables (note (b)) FEWE R & F B (M e b))
— Others — Hh 37,100 37,100
38,313 115,794
Less: Expected credit losses B EHEEEE (37,100) (37,107)
1,213 78,687
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22. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

note (a):

note (b):

Sales of natural gas represent the receivables recognised under the
production sharing contract with CNPC for the Group’s operation in
Kashi, the PRC. The Group recognises the revenue in relation to this
operation during the current year. Sales to customer is normally made
with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The entire balance of account
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, based on the invoice
dates, are not yet past due. The Group did not hold any collateral over
the balance.

The balance of sales of natural gas are non-interest bearing. The
account receivables in the amount of approximately HK$Nil are pledged
to secure the Group's other borrowing as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$78,334,000).

Loan receivable from an independent third party, Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (“Sing Pao”), which was unsecured, interest-
bearing at 1% per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2011. The loan receivable
from Sing Pao is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party.

Sing Pao’s shares were listed on the SEHK but was delisted on 18
August 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a winding-up
order was made against Sing Pao and the Group has already submitted
proof of debt form to liquidator of Sing Pao on 7 January 2016. On 2
November 2017, the Group’s legal advisor was informed by the
liquidator that the process of realisation of assets of Sing Pao was
completed and there was unlikely to be any surplus assets for
distribution to creditors (including the Company) after payment of the
costs of the liquidation.

The aging analysis of account receivables at the end of the
reporting period, presented based on the revenue recognition
dates, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Within 3 months

=EAR

BRI ERaR M EE

n'.R
31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H
22. EURBRFR ()

Miat(a) -

Bt (b) -

R AR AN S HRE RN Yz

FRRRIHERR B R R AR RET L2 E

BOKA KR AEE R BEET 2 EBHER
ZEWRIR o AL BN ANE 5% E TS HER
Yim o MEPEHMIEE —&RIZ30E60H
= B BT - Eﬁﬂé‘mﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂ&%lﬁz
BEBR-_ZT-_—FR-_Z-_FTF+-HA
=t — R EBH o ANEEI B A AT
BEMERR -

AARWEZ HEBRBTHE -RZT=_—F
+ZA=+—8 - B THRIERE EF
RAEEHEMEBEZER(ZSEZZF:
78,334,000387T) °

W —EBLE =K RERERERAT
(FBZ%EJ)EEM%HTEE?@ BB AME 1%

WER—FREER  ZFEEREEZ
”**Eﬁ— A=+—HILFERERE -
JEMRRK S B R — B 5 =75 VB AR VEIR
e

BRI 17 2 BTN B BB BT BT - RER =
E-AF/A\ATN\AKE BE-FT—OF
ToA=+—BLLEFE RBEETER
L MAKETER-_T—R"EF—ALtER
REREER AR ERERR - N T —+
F+—AZR ARBEREEERETRA
M KERANEERERD K - IBRK
rREFEESKEEANHIRTEEA (R
RRA]) A BEMEBRR o

TJE At E H)q

Z25RRRE DT AR EE) T

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET

1,213 78,687
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31 December 2021 —E£=-—%+=-fA=+—H

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BAFEEFTABEZZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2021 2020
—B-—F ZE-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Equity securities, at fair value M AE S (R A FEEET)
Listed in Hong Kong REBET 37,654 36,269
Fair value of listed equity securities based ~ ERMIBHRE ~ EHRAEFH
on quoted market price (level 1 fair value ~ AF(BE(FE—HAFEE
measurement) FTE) 37,654 36,269
Analysed as: DA
Current assets MENEE 37,654 36,269
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or EATEBEHFABEZCERNEEZAT
loss are based on their current bid price in an active market. BEDERENGRMS 2EHERKIEE -
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31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HibEWRTE - BERFANRK
PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Other receivables, deposits and Hittpelsog - sk
prepayments (note (a)) TR RIR (KTt (a) 37,811 57,369
Refundable deposits ARERT &
Mr. Wang Jian Guo (note (b)) TEBLE (KaF b)) 20,725 20,725
58,536 78,094
Less: Expected credit losses B TEEEEEE
Refundable deposit (note (b)) AR ERTE (Bt ®) (20,725) (20,725)
Other receivables and deposits HAth s RiE® (3.643) (5,240)
(24,368) (25,965)
34,168 52,129
Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of other ﬁ?gﬂmﬁg%%\ﬁ&ﬁﬁz}ﬁgﬂ%%%
receivables and deposits is as follows: BEEHMT
2021 2020
—B-—F T CTF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January R—A—RBz#&e 25,965 26,201
Reversal of expected credit losses during ~ FRBELTEHAE EEE
the year (1,597) (236)
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—Hz&#&% 24,368 25,965
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31 December 2021 —&—

—E W= A=1KSR

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

120

note (a):

note (b):

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

For the refundable deposits of HK$29,000,000, the Group agreed to
split it into two note receivables of HK$17,800,000 and HK$11,200,000
respectively with the maturity date on 31 August 2019. 8% per annum
of interest rate is charged for the note receivables and repayable on
maturity date. HK$11,200,000 of bill receivables was then assigned to
settle the shareholder loan in 2019. As at 31 December 2021, the
outstanding balance of note receivable included in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments is HK$12,000,000 (2020: HK$12,000,000),
extended to 31 January 2022, 31 August 2022 and charged at 4% per
annum.

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an independent third
party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy Even”), a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the agreement in relation to the proposed
acquisition of the 51% equity interest in each of the target companies,
Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company (5 #88 T
M % = A BR & £ 2 &) and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining Limited
Liability Company (& 12 % & £ # % F R & £ 2 7)) of an aggregate
consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent of HK$516 million) (the
“Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability companies
established in the PRC. The principal activities of both companies are in
the development of mines in the PRC. A refundable deposit of
HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to Mr. Wang
Jian Guo upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the
Company executed the Deed of termination regarding the proposed
acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the refundable deposit,
both parties shall be released and discharged from their respective
obligations under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued a
Writ of Summons against Mr. Wang Jian Guo claiming the principal and
interest on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the Court of First
Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang Jian Guo shall pay to Joy Even the
sum of RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, all of the refundable deposits were impaired
and there is no provision for impairment (2020: Nil) charged to profit or
loss for the year.

HL ft & WK
(&)

izt (a) -

Bret(b) -

H-RERFANSRK

B AR 3% 4 29,000,0008 T 5 © A%
EREEEDIFAMIERREE  £58H
5114 17,800,000 7 7T & 11,200,000 % 7T
RZT—AFNA=+—AFH - BKRE
BZEMNRAE8%  WARIHEHEE-
RZT—NF - £%/311,200,0008 T2
EREBERE B BRAEIREERK -
RZZE=—F+=ZA=+—8 " T AEfM
WA - ke RBNRBZ ERZEZ
KRIEBHE#E12,000,008T (=T =%
£ :12,000,000/7T) + IRERZE=F
ZZHF—A=+—8 -ZF==fN\A
=+—BARFFHEL% -

RZTTLFANA-+TA - TEBELE
(BxE=—H)BHIEREBAERAE (8
B (REBEZHEAR) T (&%
B REEEEZNEERLAMEE
ANBEEREAARIRSESR S LmE
BRETARITAZS1%BE 2R EL
A 498,000,000t (#8557 516,000,000
BIT) c ZMEIR B ARFPBRKIZE
REARE - MARBR 2 EEEZBH AR
P EREES - AEBED KRBT R
F RS A AR EIET € 20,725,000 7
JC (FHZE N AR % 20,000,0007T) e R
TNFLA=Z+—A ARRELERE
R EITE 2 RIERE - Bt - ZER[BlA]
RO EHRBREERZBEZE
F-R=ZZT——F=A+0 HIEAETE
BEERHEASHK  BITERKREZ
AeBEHE - RZTE—=FXA+NA "
RIAEEHRTZELEEBERANRIESZ NS
FEARY22,723,287 THEEHITL - =
T-—FR-ZT-_TF+=A=t+—8"
2E AR EIES Y ERE - B W ENAE
EZBHIRRERE(—ZS5F &) -




25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HiERIEBR EFTFIE
2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Current: mE
Property, plant and equipment/exploration #1% - BiE K&, HFE &
and evaluation cost payables (note (a)) R RS A (B 7t () 399,660 474,364
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) H b A RRIE K FERT AR (BT aEb)) 70,541 153,107
470,201 627,471
470,201 627,471

note (a): Property, plant and equipment/exploration and evaluation cost payables
represents balances payable to sub-contractors engaged by the Group
to perform exploration, evaluation and development works on the area
designated in the Petroleum Contract as disclosed in Note 15 and Note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

note (b): Included above are the receipt in advance from CNPC amounted to
HK$30,915,000 (2020: HK$105,162,000).

BALANCE WITH RELATED PARTY
Amount due to a shareholder

The amount due a shareholder is unsecured, interest-free
(2020: Nil) and repayable on demand.

26.

Biet(a): WARE BEMARMIE 1S RIBFHIIE - ¥
¥ BB RFRE R RN R A
BNTARERE ROBRENETZE
EHAETHR  FEREETEZSEBEN
Kk e

Bratb) - IR R BFERE B A hEE 2 FEWR

¥ A30,915000/% jo( = T = T &
105,162,000787¢) °

EHEBEE A T 2 &5 ER
FEfY — BIRRFKIE

N —RBRRFAREER 28 (=F
—TEE) RERERERE -
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31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
Present value Present value
Lease of lease Lease of lease
payments payments payments payments
HERR HEARZEE HERT HENRZEE
2021 2021 2020 2020
—E--F ZZE-—-§ ZZT=F —E2-F
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year R—FR 12,297 11,178 7,921 7,393
In the second to fifth years, F_FEERF
inclusive (BEERME) 7,889 7,611 4,436 4,236
20,186 18,789 12,357 11,629
Less: Future finance charges W ARBEER (1,397) (728)
Present value of lease liabilites ~ EBEZHRE 18,789 11,629

=

Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : A 1218 A RE|EREE 2
within 12 months (shown SHE(NRBHEBETY
under current liabilities) ~) (11,178) (7,393)

Amount due for settlement RNERRISAEBE, 5

after 12 months 7,611 4,236
At 31 December 2021, the average effective borrowing rate RZEZ—F+ZRA=1+—80 " FHEK
was 7.86% (2020: 6.98%). Interest rates are fixed at the B HFEAISH(ZFE = F F:
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest 6.98%) °c FIETINAHBEEE - jﬁ
rate risk. < AEEmRA FEERNEER

122 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

28. OTHER BORROWINGS

29.

Secured other borrowings BHRFHMEE
Repayable: FE(EE -
Within one year or on demand —ERYIRER
In the second year REZF

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

The other borrowings were denominated in RMB, charged at
an interest rate of 8.5% per annum, repayable partly in 2 years
and fully in 3 years from the drawdown date and pledged by
the account receivables of the Group (Note 22) under the
Petroleum Contract dated 22 December 2008, the
supplemental contract dated 6 December 2017, the second
supplemental contract dated 20 June 2019 and the gas sales
agreement dated 27 April 2020. In addition, the rights of
natural gas sharing amount and sales revenue under the
product sharing agreement and the sales agreement were
pledged as security for the other borrowings as at 31 December
2021 (2020: same pledge as at 31 December 2021).

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor and beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the Vendor,
entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in Totalbuild
Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments held the entire issued
share capital of China Era which had entered into the
Petroleum Contract with CNPC as disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRI ERaR M EE

n'.R

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

28.

F=FE2ELF (BEEEWF)

29.

Ht g &

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

453,750 389,400

79,860 -

330,330 77,880

43,560 311,520

453,750 389,400

HifEBEUAREE  FHES5% -
BRAZBB2FREE—BHEIFA
BE2E YREBHE-_ZTNE+=
A-+=-HzRH&e4  BfA=Z—+
FH+_ARNBZExEH BEA-Z
—NERNAZ+THZEZOHEHE
BfA-_ZE-_EFNA-_t+LHZER
1 5 DA N &£ [ e 4R BR FX R R 1 (B 5
22) s WA RZEBE-—F+-_A=+—
H ESRSKBREAEESHRE TN ZRKA
ROKREBERIEERAENEERELR
MEBEZER(ZEZZF: BT = —
F+-A=+—RBZE\RER) -

JEERERE

RZZBTEAF—A=+=H ARQ7 "
Bl E B ABR A T<rEEJ>&£IE
EEERBBRZERARESZHEEH
TRAZEZHEEAN)  PRFR(ER
ERAZERN REZRBLAREER
(BB)BRAR([HAIRE]) 2 100% I
Az mel i ([ ZimE]) - Eal®
EERFAETPRFREBEETRA - MW
PEFRERBRAHEECR Y T AM
AH (NFE M IEREM T 19FTHE) ©
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29.

124

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries
(the “Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

As a result of completion of the Acquisition and the First
Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall
amount of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an
escrow agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan
consideration payable by the Company in the sum of
HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by deducting the deposit in the
sum of HK$804,000,000 and with the balance of
HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes (“Shortfall Notes”)
should only be released to the Vendor upon the Company
having received a written certificate issued by the competent
evaluator confirming that the First Designated Area be
evaluated on the basis of unrisked economic evaluation on or
before 31 May 2015 (the “Relevant Period”). No such written
certificate was received by the Company on or before 31 May
2015. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Shortfall Notes
have been returned to the Company for cancellation. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, a gain of HK$92,459,000
was recognised in profit or loss, and approximately
HK$1,309,405,000 related to equity component of the
convertible notes have been transferred from convertible notes
reserve to accumulated losses as the result of the cancellation
of convertible notes.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

29.

AR EE &)

RZT——F—A=H " KERMREER
RAZE—EER((F-EELE])
AR EREMBAR (HAKRESR
M) 22MEBTRA(TKEBSEE] 2
BRI ERERK »

ARERWIEEERE —EEHE - A
NEIBIRTREHRB0.168 B TR E /2%
775 —#£2,558,000,00078 7T 2 Al IR =
¥ A8 —#EX & 2,558,000,000 7%
T(ERERBHEERNEERENE
%6 1,279,000,0007870) o AR A B 2 85
&5 H R 1B 906,299,000 7T 2 1% @I
1% % 804,000,000 7t M & 15 - M &4 58
102,299,000/8 T BILAIR & st F 2 H A
ARER -

RIEZ e Z=%81,279,000,000/8 T2
RBRER(ZEEEDETRARF
BB EFEEMBEHEMEESERE
—EEHWREER _E—RAFRA=+—
Bz ai ([ BRAERE ) BIEERRKLE
FEAEEEFGE - AAERRR c AREIRZ
T—RFRA=Zt+—HzA T EEE
EHEMEE - REZBEIER - =8
FEEERERAHETE BE_T—RF
+—A=+—HBIFE ARAFEHEEHEA
8 R% 22 45 1 7 18 5 B 2R U 25 92,459,000
B TBRREBRERIOMEE D
1,309,405,000 7% 7T B B A #2 iR 2= 45 1 1
EREREEE -
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible notes of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where
the convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group
(other than the associates of the noteholder) such transfer shall
comply with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or
requirements imposed by the SEHK, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder
of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it,
taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be
interested in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the
Company (or in such percentage of the issued share capital of
the Company as may from time to time be specified in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level
for triggering a mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of
the convertible notes shall exercise the conversion right
attached to the convertible notes held by such holders if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the
shares fall below the minimum public float requirement
stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as required by
the SEHK. The conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is
subject to adjustment for consolidation, sub-division or
reclassification of shares, capital reduction, rights issues and
other events which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company.

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

29. AR EE &)

SO - BB Z I - AEEI EER T
EARTAE B TEHE 2 MENERS o R
M ENZ B RIEH 2B TIEGE
1T T8 3A 7,442,000,000 78 7T 2 B YN AT
BB AKIESE — e tE - BREE
B ARERALER - FRIEER o

E—MWTEBARREBELASEA
2,558,000,000 7% 7T ° AR R =ik 2 B HA
BA%EITAH-_Z——F— A= HEs
=+FEm o AT ZEET B R EH
NI RREEREETERER
ABEALTUIINZ AEBBEALT(EE
R EMKRA) - B EMEEAFS LETHR
Bl ZHE RS R TE 2 HE (R
B)e

REFEAITRETEHEF =1TFR
BE R IR R AR (B B A% 0.168 78 T i 2 BB Sk &P
DHBBEEBEASELBBARFHE
B G HERITER  IBRERER
FAEAMEE-BITHALIRERER
FEEERIREFI0% KA ERRAE
MEeBTROER(XEEARKERSE
PRI BENESRT B Sl R Bl E 2 @&
WEEZRZARBEHTRAZES
o) RUANSTTIE AT HR AR SRR PR 51 1R 4
Ko (i) R 2 BE 30 1% - D 2 RRFERE
B Z= (R P 1 T AR I 55 8.08 16k P 3T BR Bt 2
FTARE < RIBEARFAIERTE - BB
SERBEANBTEXSTHEAMEH
BIRRIBATI K ik - mAREEAR0.168
BRI AR A0 - FAKEHOHE
HIRRAS ~ AR R b S A R B2 BT
AEEEYE L FRELFE -
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29.

126

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to profit or loss over the loan periods.
The equity component of the convertible notes, representing
the difference of the fair value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the liabilities component, was included in the
owner’s equity and denoted as convertible notes reserves.

29. AR EE &)

BESD REDRBD A FEERET
ARERERETE - BEMIZAFEE
(BRRIFRDEE)ERRFIEAIRRK
RRZMENEAE - AEAD 2 BB
ER1M% MASRAIERERARNE
Baiiks - IRREBRZ RS (KK
ABRREBEAFEEREEROATE
B2 EZR)FFABEAEAZREARKRRR
AR R

The movement of the principal amount, liability component AIMIRRBEAR SR - RIERD MER D
and equity component of the convertible notes are as follows: ZEENT
Carrying amount
IREE
Liability Equity
component component
=) RIS
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—H—H 79,199 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) MEFZ (MzE8) 8,570 -
As at 31 December 2020 and at RZZE_TF+_A=+—HK
1 January 2021 —£-—%—H—H 87,769 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) FEFZ (MFE8) 9,496 =
As at 31 December 2021 RZEBE-_—F+=-A=+—A1 97,265 695,828
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Up to 31 December 2021, convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$599,330,000 have converted into ordinary
shares of the Company. No convertible notes have been
converted during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HK$679,670,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3
January 2011.

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

29. AR EE &)

BE_Z_—F+-_A=+—H X&HE
7#$599,330,000,8 7T 2 A AR RIEE H i
ARARETRER HE—TE - —FK-F
—EF+-_A=1+—HIFE  WEAHR
REIRE R -

R-E——FR T -_FF+_F=+—
B IR EBE2RAEELASLEA
679,670,000/ T + ME/HAR AT (A
—E——F—A=H)iHm=TF-

SHARE CAPITAL 30. IR
2020
== —T-%
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RBEE <8 BB E o
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of ShkEME0.05% T
HK$0.05 each ZEBR
At 1 January and R—A—HK
31 December +-A=+—H 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 25,000,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
Ordinary shares of SREE0.05/ET
HK$0.05 each 2 ERK
At 1 January and R—RA—BXK
31 December +=-ZA=+—H 9,505,344,000 475,267  9,505,344,000 475,267
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31. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

128

Bt 35 $R R B R

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 23 March 2022.

Zhao Guogiang
R R
Director

EE

Notes

et

FRBEE
NGIEYNCIPA: £

RBEE
BRAFEEFABRRZE
BEE
HAbFEYRIR ~ 11 E MR
(NE-E]

Ha RIRTTEH

REBAE
HoAth & A5 3RIE 2 AT IR
JE 5 — R AR IR

REBEEFE
EEREBERABAEE

FRBEE
QEEES

BEFRE

R
LN
fré

30
32

HmER

B=x
KT BEZ I EHRE

31. Z£RA BRI K

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAIT FET
1,550,264 1,548,295
1,550,264 1,548,295
37,654 36,269
12,673 12,066
18,255 29,263
68,582 77,598
1,222 1,045
32,589 29,730
33,811 30,775
34,771 46,823
1,585,035 1,595,118
97,265 87,769
97,265 87,769
1,487,770 1,507,349
475,267 475,267
1,012,503 1,032,082
1,487,770 1,507,349
EN-_BE--_F=A=-+=B#E

Gu Quan Rong
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32. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

32. &

() &&EHE

AEEZ FRESBREEHNGS
BaEkHEME2HAKRERARGERE

profit or loss and other comprehensive income and HNEERANZY o
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Company (b) &AF
Contributed Share  Convertible Accumulated
surplus premium notes reserve losses Total
B4 T
RAE e R EE SERE RiER st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT FHT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEF—A—A 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,421,123) 1,045,241
Total comprehensive loss KEERAEFE
for the year k] = = = (13,159) (13,159)
At 31 December 2020 RZZB_2F
+-A=+—H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828  (1,434,282) 1,032,082
Total comprehensive loss TEFREER
for the year o - - - (19,579) (19,579)
At 31 December 2021 R-BE=--f&
tTZA=1-H 91,349 1,679,187 695828  (1,453.861) 1,012,503
Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group FEERFEBEZMEERBH
Contributed surplus BRI E

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of the
subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17
January 2002.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company under certain
circumstances. It represents the excess of the nominal
value of shares issued by the Company.

BERRABRRTIBRBE_TT _F—
AT EtEAEEEAR - AR
MEBARZEBRITRAMETZA
NAERGD 2 EE &K B ARz 85
BEEMEZER -

R HE

RERSEHSRARDEZHRE - Ry
HBEREETERTADIKRTAR
AR - B EERBHARELD
TR EEZBGE -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
(Continued)

Convertible notes reserve
The convertible notes reserve represents the equity

component of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option to
convert the note into share capital).

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

32. ®EE)

(b) AT (#)

AEEFEZMEER BB ()

A PR SR IR fof 1

AMBEREREREC BRITAIRRS
BN (A RABRERER
RZIEZHE)

33. EAERE

REBRFERRZEARAEMT

2021 2020
—E—F il Sl a3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Contracted but not provided for in BT HNERR T BEERE
respect of:
— property, plant and equipment and — W - BB REE R MR R
exploration and evaluation HRX
expenditures 114,575 115,501
— capital contribution in a subsidiary — 8B ARNEE 133,100 129,800

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$114,575,000 (of which approximately HK$517,233 would
be borne by CNPC) (2020: HK$115,501,000 of which
approximately HK$36,151,000 would be borne by CNPC) and
HK$133,100,000 (2020: HK$129,800,000) as at 31 December
2021 in respect of capital expenditure of exploration,
production and distribution of nature gas segment and capital
contributions in a subsidiary respectively.
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RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ' X£EH
RARRD BT « EEF D HEE A
SRS —ENBARZEEDIEEAR
AYEHX 114,575,000 7T (A 49517,233
ErRPEAShREERAE) (ZE_2F
115,501,0007% 7T * H A 4936,151,000 /8
JT A R B G i £ [ EGE ) 133,100,000
Bt (ZZT =Z4F : 129,800,000/87T) °
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BABALRRS
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which AABEEBRARRIEE AT 2K B
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on NEETZR SO R GEREE Y I
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as those ERAHTFIRE - BREGEABHRREMES
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, DWBEEI  REBHEIFAREERS QA
the Group had the following material transactions with related M EREATEUNTEARS :

and connected parties which are not members of the Group:

2021 2020
—EC--F —FFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TrET
Salary paid to a ultimate holding X F—BRAERRRNHE
shareholder 4,270 1,539
Key management personnel remuneration FTEEBEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, RTAEEIREEABZHE (BER
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed ARBEEINZER) WENGEMTH
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. WRMETE13 -
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35. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

132

35.

RABKEFABEIERRAF, an effective 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has non-controlling interests
("NCI”). TR IBEEFRRTAER RG], an effective 26.01%
owned subsidiary of the Company, is a direct subsidiary of 72

WIHKRE B EITARRT.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of 525z
Bk E 8 A ML THMRAF, before intra-group eliminations,

is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December
Revenue

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income

Profit/(Loss) for the year
allocated to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Net cash generataed from operating
activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

At 31 December
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

FERER

RNAREBRHEES 1% ERZHEB AR
WISIKE S AmIL THR AT HA JEE
PR (TIEERER ) c AR AERE
B26.01% 2 B R A RIS RE B
MRAER AR ARNIBKRESAMRIET

BERARZBEEMBAR -

BRERNBKESAMETBRARFE
ZicE s < M EMBE CREFREER

HiHp0) 25T -

BE+t-A=+—RHLEE

Yo za

AEZEN,/(EE)

EHREAER

PERTFFERERZ
FRER,(BE)

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

REESARHEFER
KRBTSR FHE

BehZERRE ORD)/
BIIVEES 5

R+t=-A=+—H
mEEE
FRBEE
mBAE

BEFE

RET IR S
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2021 2020
=B —F il e a3
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
13,668 10,138
1,275 (714)
1,677 307
944 (523)
4,929 1,938
(5,998) =
(1,069) 1,938
3,323 3,875
22,725 19,033
(9,416) (7,953)
16,632 14,955
12,484 11,187
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash available on demand FrEr AR

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

6. MERERERME

() REREEARSEE

2021 2020
:g:—qi — 7 —% $
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET THET
167,280 167,985

(b) EXEREETDH2EEEY

TRERFALKERERERD

liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: v e
Amount Total liabilities
Other duetoa Lease from financing
borrowings  shareholder liabilities activities
Hits EN—& REMEED
&g R ERFIE HESE ZHBaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZEF—-A—H - 29,551 13,887 43,438
Changes in cash flows: BEREZBE
Advance from a shareholder [ —&RRER = 179 = 179
Proceeds from other borrowings  E-Afi e B FT1S 5408 362,637 = = 362,637
Interest paid ENFE (6,871) - - (6,871)
Payment of lease liabilities HEBBHK = = (17,371) (17,371)
355,766 179 (17,371) 338,574
Non-cash changes FREEY
— Addition —RhE 3,663 = = 3,663
— Recognition of lease —BRHEEERE
liabilities - - 13,629 13,629
— Interest charged — Bk E 6,871 = 893 7,764
— Exchange adjustments — BB 23,100 - 591 23,691
33,634 - 15,113 48,747
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36.

134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities (Continued)

At 31 December 2020 and

1 January 2021 =+—Hk
e
Changes in cash flows: BEREVEE

Proceeds from other borrowings  E & & S 208

Interest paid ERAFE
Payment of lease liabilities HEBERR
Non-cash changes FREH
— Recognition of lease —HRHEEEE
liabilities
— Interest charged —BHBRZFE
— Exchange adjustments —ERAE
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
+=B=t-H

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

RZZZZTF+=A

36. FERTMERMTEE)
(b) EXEEmMEFTH2EEET
(%)

Amount Total liabilities

Other duetoa Lease from financing
borrowings  shareholder liabilities activities
Htt EBN—% REWMEEE
& RRFIE HESE ZBER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET
389,400 29,730 11,629 430,759
53,550 - - 53,550
(34,103) - - (34,103)
- - (15,256) (15,256)
19,447 = (15,256) 4,191
- - 19,365 19,365
34,103 - 2,679 36,782
10,800 104 372 11,276
44,903 104 22,416 67,423
453,750 29,834 18,789 502,373




37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

— To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

—  To support the Group's stability and growth; and

— To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves of HK$475,267,000 (2020:
HK$475,267,000) and HK$1,237,495,000 (2020:
HK$1,124,915,000) respectively as at 31 December 2021.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group has not adopted any
formal dividend policy. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. For details of cash flow forecast carried out by
the Directors, please refer to Note 3(b)(ii) “Going concern
basis”.

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

37.

38.

HAEE

RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 A&EET
EAIAMEASAAB(ZZ_ZF  £) -

EXEREE
AEEERASZARA -

— REAEEGEFELCE  BERK
REEMESEFE ADRIERE R
Kz

— XPBAKEZREMMER R

— REEARNUMNBAEE 2 EREE

4,
BE ©

RZE-—F+-"fF=+—0 KAEEE
AEBEBREALGEE AE LR - &
B IER AR N FEE D B AR 475,267,000 %
TT(ZZF ZF F : 475,267,000/ 7T ) &
1,237,495,000% o = & = & F:
1,124,915,000#7T) o

AEEBEGNERRS MERREAR
B ARREBEARBRBERLOR - &
LEARBREROKE ZEIAEE
ZAREETBEREANYE BT RIAA
AN BAKERERE - BAER
M RIBRIREIERERS - AEELE
RAEFMERAREBER - RIBESHHRE
2F AKREBERMNBE - BITH
B~ B - AR BTHEREERA
B85 - FaHEREARE BRESE
THRERERANFE - F2HME
3(b)(i) [ BB EE |
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39.

136

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade receivables, which arise directly from its operations. The
main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group’s business are foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price
risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Directors review and agree on policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to certain bank balances
and other receivables in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a 3%
strengthen/weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have increased/decreased profit before
income tax by HK$89,000 (2020: HK$206,000). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of financial liabilities will fluctuate because of
the changes in market interest rates.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B2 RA R A 7

39.

B b B

AEEAZHRGBEERAG  MEERE
BLERREL 2B HRIWEIA - EAK
B-REFEETAEAKESRITAE
ErzI2RRAINERR - FEAR - F
SRk RnBETRRLRAEBRRR

AEEZEERREEFEEINER
M52 AR TR - WS REERELHA
SEPBRRABEINEE - EF SR
A REEEE &R BER - Bt
LN

(a) SMEEELER

E¥RRESRIAZAFEERE
ARB DR ERINEE K ZF) iR
BzRER - AERERINEE RE)
AEZMSER  TREANEEE
BUREEE I ERIIEZET
RITRESR N E M EYGRIANER - E
EEERRHNEBIRRETT

N-ZE-_—FE+=-A=+—H ' &K
REEF BT A ARBHE B
B3% - BIRRFT1S B A & F 8 & 1
0,84 89,0008 T (ZE -4 :
206,000/87T) ° ZBREE D ITREK
FTEEMBEH(LERFR)EHFT

(b) A ZEE
MERBESHMEE N FEER
& B B 5 FI K S B T
B2 BBRAM -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(o)

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from other
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment of
interest-bearing borrowings are disclosed in Note 28.
Other borrowings in Note 28 at fixed interest rate are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.
The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group are considered to be effective.

In 2021 and 2020, as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for
account receivables from sales of natural gas, loan and
interest receivables, and the other receivables and
deposits that were further explained in Notes 22 and 24
to the consolidated financial statements respectively, the
Group principal financial assets are the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and bank balances placed
in financial institution and reputable banks separately.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any credit risk exposure for those financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances. For
credit exposures to customers, Group management has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. For credit
exposures associated with the refundable deposits and
loan receivables, Group management had assessed the
credit quality of the debtors, taking into account their
financial position, their business developments and other
factors. In addition, the Group ensures that the amount
of the loan is within the limit set by the Group.

A IR SRR M EE

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

EERER®)
(b) =g &)

(9]

AEBZzNERBREEHEMIER
EXE - ZEBEE 2N KR RER
HAMO MY SE 284K BR - Mt s 28 Pt 2
Bl EMEXAZMGHEEECRE
- AEEYEERTATESD
R ENERR - TEGERRE

BF R E G o A T E R
FMERBZBEE - AEE—HE
EHAERBRZEER  TRAEZSE
BERAB -

RZB-_—ER-_F_FTEF @R
AEBYEERFREERAE
E&K%Z%“%fﬁé/ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ
ANBEY I

FEER

EERRNIRASEEETE - B
il iﬁAﬁﬁ%#&ﬁwuﬂzﬁmﬁ

a2 B RARIEE 2 R
& Mo R ) B L A R MR TR %
BaI AEEZEIEZSRMEESR

BRAVFEBEFABRRIEREER
DHERREREEREERKZ
RITZIRITHE R - ENZFRITA
BEREENL  EEERM TS
ZERAFEEFARSZZERE
ENRTHEBEEEERR - $E
BEPZEERRITE AKEE
EEARRBRASERESE
EERRBIEPETHE - ER

E@TL AERERERERZE
ERk - AEBKEF REBAZY

Bk EBEREEMEAREZD
AEREZEEER - IS AE
BHEAREREBANAEEAR
BRZA e
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Accounts receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and expected credit losses
for account and note receivables as at 31 December 2021

BERRER &)
() EER#E)
JE R %

AEBNBESER = HEHEEEE
ZEEAERBRS  BIERE -
HRASEBEZ EEBRLRL
BRI TNREFPOBZEBRERENA
ERER  HERBHARFEZ
EIEBEYEEASETNRATPE
ZBEFE—FED

FREGEMA T 5K %
ZEFTA=T—BEREEEK
/TA&TTF?)%EEWZ1*EHKAA&},E

and 2020: ,B;w;f’fﬁiﬂaz%ﬂ
2021
—E-—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FRHIEER FREAE EBERE
(%) HK$'000 HK$’000
(%) FET FET
Sales of natural gas: HERAR -
Current (not past due) BNEA (R HR) 0% 1,213 -
Loan and interest receivables:  fEUWE 7 & Al &
More than 1 year past due BHR 1 F LA B 100.00% 37,100 37,100
38,313 37,100
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. BIKERER#)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) () EERKE)
Accounts receivables (Continued) FEUGBR L (4)
2020
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAE B % REAE e
(%) HK$°000 HK$°000
(%) FET FET
Sales of natural gas: EEXAST
Current (not past due) BNER (R HER) 0.009% 78,694 7
Loan and other receivables: FEUN &3 R Ho A pE Uk FhE
More than 1 year past due BEATFAE 100.00% 37,100 37,100
115,794 37,107

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
account and note receivables during the year is as

follows:

Balance at 1 January R—A—BZ&E&

Expected credit losses recognised RENER 2 TEREEBE
during the year FAEREEBERD

Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—RAZ&&

BHEEXIREBEERFERE
BRERAE - WELXEHERE
A S Bk s 52 58 1 B HIR ) 2 1RO
R~ RN R AR E RS R
IRTRHFR 2 REIRN 2 A 2 =
H o

FRABRBERRNER 2 ERE
fREREBIIT

2021 2020
=B —F —EFT

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

37,107 37,104

- 3

37,107 37,107
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

140

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of each reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payment, is as follows:

At 31 December 2021
R-E=—F
+=ZRA=t+—H

Other payables and accruals £ i & < 28 7 &

HE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Due to a shareholder B — R ERIE
Other borrowings Hintg &
Other borrowings Hiptg &
— interest portion — MEEH
Convertible notes BREE

39. BiIERER#)
d) "BELERR

AEBBRBSERERB AT NA
HRBEeRE  UBREERT
WAL WENEEHERE
BZRBELHER -

AEEzERABNEREHRE
REHRMBBENK BB BRL

T
In the
Within In the third to After

one year second year fifth years five years Total

RE=ZZ
R—FR REZF BF  RAEF# st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET
470,201 - - - 470,201
12,297 7,889 - - 20,186
32,589 - - - 32,589
79,860 330,330 43,560 - 453,750
31,781 30,855 3,703 - 66,339
- - - 679,670 679,670
626,728 369,074 47,263 679,670 1,722,735
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e)

BRI ERaR M EE

n'.R

31 December 2021 —Z—-—4¢+_-A=+—H

HMEERER®)
(d) REBELEAR 2

In the
Within In the third to After
At 31 December 2020 one year second year fifth years  five years Total
R_ZFB_FTF RE=F
+=—A=+—8 \—FR REZF hFE  RAFE HBEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FET FA&T FAT FET
Other payables and E@Jﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&
accruals FEETFRIE 627,471 - - = 627,471
Lease liabilities HEB®E 7,921 4,436 - - 12,357
Due to a shareholder FER — R ER
IR 29,730 - - - 29,730
Other borrowings HigE - 77,880 311,520 - 389,400
Other borrowings HEMEE
— interest portion — ¥ B Z 1 33,099 33,099 26,479 - 92,677
Convertible notes IR EE - - - 679,670 679,670
698,221 115,415 337,999 679,670 1,831,305
The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the B FAEHNAEEREE RS
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of not AR TLR A BE AR
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting TmE TR K& E IR E R A B b 1
period, and other measures taken by the management as Bt (RAAR & B 75 R 2% BT 3 3(b)(ii) AT 3R
referred to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial ) REAEEEREERTLEER
statements, and consider that the Group will have & AAENBE=Z=—F+=A
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations =+t— BT ZEARNEHZ &
as and when they fall due for the twelve months from 31 BEE -
December 2021.
Price risk (e) EREE

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities. All
of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

K& l%*‘“*ﬁﬁiﬁéf %%ZHXZIS
Fﬁﬁ%%%&ﬁi’ﬂi%iﬁ g

REBZ EMEREREBH M E
M- BARBHEBZEHZARED
ZEAERERFEAFRF AR K
EMITEBERBZERUARASE
BEzREBESTEEL - KREHE
BIEARBERECRBEETESH
EZTIbDB -
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39.

142

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. BIKERERE#)

(e) Price risk (Continued) (e) EBEEPEE)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period for those trading securities. If equity
price had been 5% higher, the profit (2020: loss) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
increased by HK$1,883,000 (2020: decreased by
HK$1,813,000). Had the relevant equity price been 5%
lower, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit (2020: loss).

UTEEEFNBBREDITINER
RMEBRBAERRBET ° WK
NE®EEAS%  AHBHE-T=—
F+_A=Z+—HIEFEZHF(=
T T F51E) FEE 01,883,000
B (ZEZZF : F 41,813,000
BIT) o WA B AER TES5%

BIShE R (ZZE=ZF : Bi8)BAE

TRHEHERERFE -

(f) Categories of financial instruments ) SRMITAEDE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Financial assets: SWMEE
Financial assets at fair value through 1R A FEBEF AEB
profit or loss ZEREE 37,654 36,269
Financial assets measured at amortised ZESEK AT E 2 ©RIE E
cost (including cash and cash (BiER2RERRSE)
equivalents) 200,029 297,221
Financial liabilities: SRAaE
Financial liabilities measured at BREERAGTECERAE
amortised cost 1,072,594 1,145,999
(9) Fair value (9) AVEE

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

41.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2022.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFRBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —_Z_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Results

RE

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax (charge)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

EERAE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Attributable to owners of
the Company
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BRETS BT, (B5E)
PrEB (X)), %
AEZRN(BR)

TSR
s, ()

ARAEE ARG
M, (EE)

BEE#AE
BB
IR S

EA/NCTL 2SN

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—BE-_—F —T-TF ZFE-NF ZT-N\F ZT—+F
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEr FEr FEr FEr
353,588 173,480 158,060 477,789 13,039
200,824 (19,093) (185,168) 138,229  (241,627)
(77,049) 4,397 111,677 (111,041) 6,774
123,775 (14,696)  (73,491) 27,188  (234,853)
944 523 1,139 356 (657)
124,719 14,173 72,352 27,544  (235,510)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“EC—F 2T F —F-NF ZT-)\F Z2—+F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2,851,578 2,757,368 2,417,204 2,411,573 2,349,479
(1,072,594) (1,145,999) (896,696) (776,914)  (648,239)
(12,484)  (11,187)  (10,804)  (12,306)  (11,780)
1,766,500 1,600,182 1,509,704 1,622,353 1,689,460
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